
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




  


 
 


 
 
Presentation to: Board of Governors 
Subject: Ontario Special Bursaries Program (OSBP) 
Date: November 12, 2012 
Presenter(s):  Duane McNair, Vice-President, Finance and Administration 
 
 
Purpose:     
 
To provide an update to the June 11, 2012 Board of Governors report regarding 
programs impacted by the reduction and elimination of Ontario Special Bursary Program 
(OSBP) funding. 
 
Background:  
 
In 2012-13, the Ministry transferred responsibility for the Ontario Special Bursary 
Program (OBSP) to colleges and universities.  Colleges and universities were advised 
that they must fund at least a portion of this Program from Tuition Set-Aside (TSA) funds 
(2012-13 budget of $5M) and may use other institutional funds to increase funding for 
the Program.  Accordingly, OSBP has been renamed the Institution Funded Special 
Bursary Program (ISBP).   
 
Staff have estimated that the annual budget impact resulting from the discontinuance of 
the  Ministry-funded OSBP is approximately $900,000.  In addition, in 2012-13, a final, 
reduced OSBP funding contribution from the Ministry was received in the amount of 
$230,000.   
 
Algonquin College programs affected by the discontinuation of OSBP funding include 
Academic Assistance for Adults with Developmental Disabilities (AAADD), Academic 
Upgrading (AU) daytime and evening, and the English as a Second Language (ESL) 
Canadian program. 
 
A report was presented to the Board of Governors on June 11, 2012 providing 
background information on each of these programs as well as a recommendation to 
continue to offer these programs through the Fall 2012 term pending further information 
from the Ministry. 
 
Discussion/Consideration: 
 
A working group of directors and managers has reviewed and discussed options that will 
allow the College to continue to offer these programs with the minimum impact on 
students and maintain financial sustainability for the College.   
 
The working group also assessed the contribution that these programs have on the 
College’s strategic plan as a guide to develop a recommendation.  Based on this review, 


Ontario Special Bursaries Program  November 12, 2012  Finance and Administration 







  


Ontario Special Bursaries Program  November 12, 2012  Finance and Administration 


management has determined that approximately 61% of students from the Academic 
Upgrading program and 13% of the students from ESL Canadian program enrol in full 
time post-secondary programs, resulting in future tuition and grant funding for the 
College and more trained graduates.  Based on this data, providing financial aid to 
support these students appears to be warranted because it generates an increase in 
enrolment while maintaining financial sustainability.   
 
It is important to note that steps are currently being taken by the Language Institute to 
transition ESL Canadian from the current ‘tuition-short’ funding format (tuition-short is a 
Ministry operating grant funding mechanism for short-term programs) to an Ontario 
College Certificate, English for Academic Purpose program.  If successful, the result 
would be that ESL Canadian is a full-time program whose students would be eligible to 
apply for financial aid from the Ontario Student Assistance Program (OSAP).  This would 
result in a significant reduction of the number of ESL Canadian students in need for 
bursaries from the TSA fund, including ISBP.  The likelihood of achieving this goal is 
high.  


Although the Academic Assistance for Adults with Developmental Disabilities (AAADD) 
does not generate new post-secondary enrolment, any changes to the program in the 
future would require consultation with our community to ensure a smooth transition to an 
alternate delivery model.  Future options that could be explored include partnering with 
other community organizations to deliver these courses. 
 
The Ministry has implied that the overall need for bursaries should be reduced due to the 
recent implementation of the Ontario Tuition Grant (OTG).  As OTG was only 
implemented on January 1, 2012, data is not yet available to validate this assumption 
and, therefore,  programming changes are considered to be premature.     
 
For 2012-13, this shortfall will be addressed through the following methods: 


• an unanticipated OSBP final payment of $230,000; 
• reallocation of resources of $500,000 within the TSA Cost Centre; and, 
• an injection of $170,000 from contingency provisions created to address 


unknown impacts of the Ontario Provincial Budget. 
 
For the 2013-14 annual budget, the TSA allocation will be calculated and allocated using 
the new guidelines and in a manner which both addresses student needs and does not 
require contingency funding.      
 
Recommendation:    
 


 
• That the AAADD, Academic Upgrading and ESL Canadian programs continue to 


be delivered beyond Fall 2012 and that the College continue to regularly assess 
the financial sustainability and alignment of these programs to the Strategic Plan. 
 


• For 2012-13, that the ISBP financial aid program shortfall be funded from a 
combination of TSA funds and the institution’s budgeted contingency provisions.  
 
For 2013-14 and beyond, that the ISBP financial aid program be funded from 
TSA funds only.  








Board of Governors 
Management Summary Report 
November 12, 2012 
 
Area PRESIDENT 
President MacDonald was selected to join the Board of Directors of Invest Ottawa.  The purpose of 
Invest Ottawa is to deliver economic development programs and initiatives that increase 
entrepreneurial momentum, wealth and jobs in the City of Ottawa and its surrounding region while 
marketing Ottawa’s diversified economy and high quality of life. 
Area 1 HUMAN RESOURCES 
BUSINESS RE-ENGINEERING/TIMESHEETS PART TIME PAYROLL 
Value-stream analysis on the payroll process has been completed and the current payroll processing 
state has been documented. In addition a concurrent Business Process Review addressed key pain 
points in the current process.  A recommended proposal includes moving to an exception-based 
reporting system, and leveraging Infopath and Sharepoint for data capture. The anticipated launch 
date of these changes is January, 2013. Further effort will be required to integrate Ancillary’s time 
management system with HRIS. 
 
CLIENT SERVICES 
During the 1st August, 2012 to 26th October, 2012 period the current opportunities page recorded the 
highest number of visits with 102,621 page views and 89,824 unique page views over the same 
period. 
 
RECRUITMENT 
• New job competition postings for October include: 


o 10 Support Staff Positions 
o 5 Academic positions 
o 2 Administrative Positions 


• 2013 New Hire Orientation Schedule has been created, distributed and posted on the Human 
Resources website. 


 
SUCCESSION PLANNING 
• Summary of retirement demographics for 2013 has been developed. 
• A critical position overview is being established. 
• Licence costs for Halogen have been determined for additional employees/users.  A pay per 


use licence is recommended for Succession Planning. 
 
ORGANIZATIONAL DESIGN 
• HR Consultant met with the Management Team in the Perth Campus to develop a workforce plan 


for the next 3-5 years. Initial plans were developed to reorganize the Employment Services team. 
A workforce report was delivered to the Dean. 


• IIRTS has engaged with the HR Consultant to ensure that a reorganization within the department 
is completed. 


• CJEC Committee met twice during October and evaluated 7 Support Staff positions. 
 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
Communication was disseminated October 2, 2012, reminding our Administrative employees to 
provided their Q2 updates by the third week in October. 
 
A new probabtionary review form for Support Staff has been developed, and is currently being 
circulated for approval.   
 
Algonquin College Faculty Performance Support Committee has reviewed Faculty survey.  The 
results of this survey confirmed a high level of interest in the Faculty Support Evaluation initiative.  


1 
 







The committee is now in the process of organizing four focus groups at the Pembroke, Perth and 
Woodroffe campuses for faculty and chairs. The sessions will allow the committee to gather additional 
information from participants on the preferred outcomes of the evaluation process, the methods used 
to gather information on faculty performance and the evaluation format. The focus groups commence 
in late October. The committee is working toward full implementation for the 2013-14 academic year. 
 
LABOUR RELATIONS 
As of October 24, 2012 there are 26 active Support Staff grievances and 7 active Academic 
grievances which are ongoing through the Step process. 
 
COMPENSATION, PENSION AND BENEFITS 
Two members of CPB participated in the Emergency Operations Centre table top exercise on 
October 24th.  The event was deemed successful although we will be working to decrease the amount 
of time required to support the EOC.   
 
Additionally, 3 members attended the 7th Building Healthier Workplaces Conference and are excited 
about bringing these ideas and suggestions back to Algonquin College to increase engagement and 
wellness. 
 
The Business Process review data gathering has been completed with CPB with all members actively 
participating.  We are confident positive suggestions and changes will result from this time 
commitment. 
 
We continue to work with OHS to try to improve the WSIB processes as well as review the schedule 1 
& 2 options. 
 
We continue to work with CAAT Pension and CEC to ensure successful implementation as well as 
guarding the College’s interests with regard to pension amendments. 
 
Area 2 ADMINISTRATION 
PHYSICAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
Facilities Planning & Development: 
Minor deficiencies were addressed from the program of construction projects that were completed for 
start-up of classes in September 2012. 
 
This year’s remaining construction projects were tendered and are in process of being delivered to 
meet various required completion dates leading to the end of the current fiscal year. 
 
Facilities Planning & Sustainability: 
An update on Integrated Campus Development Planning (ICDP) was presented to President’s 
Council. 
 
A dialog with the City of Ottawa was initiated regarding development opportunities at Centrepointe. 
 
A preliminary work plan for the College Transportation Strategy has been developed as follows: 
• Nov - Dec 2012 


o Initiate the College-wide Project Vision and Principles (PVP) for Transportation 
o Review work completed to-date 
o Identify local issues at each campus 
o Establish priorities 
o Align priorities with funding and resources 


2 
 







• Jan-Mar 2013 
o Stakeholder engagement 
o Approval of PVP 


• Feb-May 2013 (Resources Pending) 
o Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Strategy for Woodroffe 
o Transportation and Parking Strategy for Woodroffe 
o Assemble reports and recommendations 


• June 2013 
o Report to BOG 


 
Major Capital Projects: 
The official opening ceremony for the Robert C. Gillett Student Commons took place on Thursday, 
October 18, 2012. 
 
The new Pembroke campus will open to students and the College community on Monday, October 
29, 2012. 
 
The ACCE building achieved another of its major goals – Canada Green Building Council (CaGBC) 
LEED Platinum Certification.  The formal Certification will follow in a few weeks. 
 
Most members of the Physical Resources management team attended the annual joint Ontario 
College Facilities Management Association / Administrative Services Coordinating Committee 
Conference in Sudbury hosted by Boréal College. 
 
Safety, Security and Emergency Management: 
A table top exercise was conducted on Wednesday, October 24, 2012, with the Emergency 
Operations Centre personnel and President’s Council. 
 
Technical Services and Energy Conservation - ESCO 2:  
Siemens continues to make good progress with its Detailed Feasibility Study (DFS) to identify Energy 
Conservation Measures (ECM’s) at the Woodroffe campus but regulatory issues with Ontario’s Feed 
in Tariff Program (FIT) may delay completion of the DFS until the Province opens the program to new 
applications. 
 
Physical Resources, in conjunction with Applied Research, has initiated 5 student projects that will 
provide needed information for Physical Resources while giving the student groups an experiential 
learning opportunity.  The projects include: electrical utility data collection and analysis; mechanical 
room equipment data collection, and layout drawings; assisting the Embedded Energy Manager in 
specific data collection on campus to generate 300 Kw savings this year; and two groups that will 
assist Siemens, Algonquin’s ESCO 2 energy partner, in collecting base-line usage data for the 
Woodroffe Campus. 
 
FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
 
Projects currently in progress: 


1. Payment Card Industry-Data Security Standards (PCI-DSS) project to ensure that the 
College is in compliance with the PCI standards. 


2. Implementation of a new service delivery model in the Student Commons, including “triage” 
processes through Student Success Centre. 


3. Automation of bursaries process. 
4. Elimination of credit card acceptance for tuition fees. 


3 
 







5. Expansion of the Purchasing Card Program. 
6. Value stream review of Part-time pay process, i.e. automate timesheet process. 
7. Review of the paper ordering and delivery process. 
8. Review of three Chairs’ administrative processes with Strategic Programs and Services 


Planning (forwarding e-mail, genesis reports and course loading). 
 


Projects in planning stages: 
1. Offer co-op or applied learning opportunities to College Business students. 
2. New budget model and schedule for 2013-14. 
3. RFP for Banking Services and Investment Services. 


 
The College’s Manager of Purchasing, Solveig Keshavjee, earned the SCMP (Supply Chain 
Management Professional) designation. 
 
COLLEGE ANCILLARY SERVICES 
Revenues for Ancillary Services are trending to meet forecasted targets in the aggregate.  Retail 
Services are experiencing challenges due to Student Commons construction delays that resulted in a 
later than planned opening of Connections – The Campus Store, The New Technology Store, The 
Print Shop and PhoGo’s. 
 
Retail Services was able to launch its Tea Shop at the beginning of October and has introduced a 
loyalty program specifically for this area of the store.  It is a mobile application with graduated 
benefits. 
 
The rebranding of The First Cup has been completed helping to provide a refresh to the front lobby of 
C building. 
 
Parking Services has launched a new method of tracking payment, pay by license plate, in the short 
term parking lots. Wait lists are minimal and are expected to be cleared by the end of October.  A 
national benchmarking exercise for Locker Services is being spearheaded by the Parking Office with 
the hopes of ascertaining best practices in the industry. 
 
INFORMATION, INSTITUTIONAL RESEARCH & TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 
For the month of October, Information, Institutional Research and Technology Services highlights the 
following accomplishments: 


 
• The fall term start-up has seen another dramatic uplift in mobile learning and wireless device 


activity. We are connecting an average of 3+ devices concurrently per account in most cases.  
Over 60% of all internet traffic is now sourced from the wireless system and Apple iOS 
devices (iPhone, iPad) make up over 34% of connected devices, followed in second place by 
Windows 7 laptops at 26%.   


• The wireless system has met the 99.9% availability SLA through the month of October 
(measured as the ability for a device that has been correctly configured and could access the 
network, while not factoring individual access point issues).  There remain a set of large 
occupancy classrooms where the technology present is not matching College standards 
(laptops in many programs were to have 5ghz wireless cards), lack current drivers (students 
and faculty not maintaining their own technology) and in sufficient volume to saturate the 
2.6ghz system.  Remediation work, in collaboration with faculty from SAT is ongoing.  This 
includes an imminent program to issue alternative wireless access cards to students to move 
them to the higher bandwidth system. 


• A campaign is being run through October to solicit “crowd source” assistance in identifying 
locations on campus where wireless coverage isn’t as reliable or available as it should be.  
With close to 2 million square feet of space covered by 2,000 access points and a staff of 
less than 100, we can’t detect issues as fast as our students and faculty can, but many are 
unaware or not motivated to report issues for resolution.  This campaign is working to 
educate students on the need to report and we will resolve.  With over 700 reports 


4 
 







(considerable overlap) it has been a success. 
• Internet bandwidth (access) has been expanded to support 900mb/s of throughput from 


Woodroffe with 50mb/s direct to the internet from Pembroke.  The internet access SLA of 
99.95 availability has been met. 


• Blackboard has met the 99.9% SLA through fall start up, scaling to meet student use through 
12, 64-bit servers.  Blackboard continues to take a 3am – 4am maintenance window until 
November 1, 2012, at which point it will be fully available 24/7 with 99.9% reliability.  With the 
final system upgrades November 1, the entire BlackBoard system will operate with enhanced 
network and user security, meeting a commitment to align the system with College IT 
policies. 


• Blackboard Mobile now makes up 2/3 of our total Blackboard sessions, demonstrating the 
desire of students to learn through the non PC / Laptop channels. 


• IIRTS has completed the technology infrastructure requirements for the new Pembroke 
campus, including core network, Internet, wireless coverage, and telephony as well as MLP 
classrooms, audio visual equipment and faculty and staff offices.  The project delays have 
significantly (negatively) impacted the team’s ability to concurrently open this campus and 
support the ongoing learning and teaching needs of the other campuses. 


• Capital and operating projects are on schedule for delivery to plan and budget.  40 projects (5 


tual expenditures at just under 50% 


Tickets generated: 3108 


tenance 
rd Reset 


pport 
upport 


 
• Support c  


: 796 (63%) 


• The sup t Window 8 and Office 2013 in anticipation of 
required  commercial release. 


capital one-time) have been completed as of 9.30.2012. 
• The Q2 budget was prepared, presented and reports ac


of forecast, consistent with our projections at the end of the second quarter.  
 


• Service desk and support problem ticket summary: 


Tickets closed: 3165 
Top service categories: 


ain• eClassroom M
• Network Passwo
• Wireless Configuration 
• Student (Live@AC) Email Su


) S• Hardware (College owned
• Software Support 


all center performance s
Calls Presented: 1827 


ummary (5555):


Calls Handled: 1262 
Calls Abandoned: 427 
Calls Handled within 
 


SL


port team has been working to pilo
upgrades in teaching programs once 


 
Area 3 STUDENT SERVICES 
Registrar’s Office 


ns Statisti


CAS statistics for the 2013 Winter Term indicate that, for College Choices 
applicants to Algonquin College), our Non-Secondary School applicants are 


 


Admissio cs  
 
2013 Winter Term 


s at October 17, 2012, OA
(i.e. number of individual 
up 10.0% from last year, Secondary School applicants are up 20.6%, with an overall increase in 
applicants of 12.8%.  Province wide, the variances are -4.9%, 25.7% and 3.5% respectively. 
 
As at October 17, 2012, for Program Choices (applicants are allowed a maximum of 5 program 


hoices, with up to 3 at any one College), our Non-Secondary School applicants are up 12.6% fromc


5 
 







last year, Secondary School applicants are up 25.6%, and overall we show an increase of 15.9%.  
Province wide, the respective variances are -6.2%, 27.6% and 2.8% respectively. 
 
As at October 17, 2012, for Confirmations, our Non-Secondary School confirmations are up 6.7% 


st year, Secondary School confirmations are 79.7%, and overall, we show an increase of 


 Post-Secondary/Post-Diploma Programs 
or the 2012 Fall Term, as at October 17, 2012, the net registered students numbered 16,079 or 


d students or 98.3% of the 


 
Continuing Education Registrations 


or the 2012 Fall Term as at October 10, 2012, registrations stood at 12,696 as compared to 11,444 
 registrations to October 10, 2012 represent 125.7% of the 


ery Mode Registration 
uring the Strategic Programs and Services Project (SPSP) review, the Registrar’s Office identified a 


 is critical 


tinues and has resulted in significant increases to 
l-time distance education registrations.  The project to create a new delivery mode to allow for 


hase I of the new Ontario Student Assistance Program (OSAP) modernization project has been 
odernization program, or OSAP Express, is part of Ontario's 'Putting Students 


from la
19.1%.  Province wide, the respective variances are 6.1%, 51.9% and 18.0% respectively. 
 
Registration Statistics 
 
Full-time Registration in
F
103.1% of the projected enrolment.   This compares to 15,172 net registere
projected enrolment for the same period last year. 
 
The breakdown is as follows: 
 


 


F
at the same time last year.  The term
projected enrolment.  Registration continues throughout the term. 
 
Strategic Programs & Services Project – Online Program Deliv
D
critical recommendation regarding the creation of a new online, mobile, delivery mode which
to the achievement of our strategic plan objectives. 
   
Our move toward the global and digital College con
ful
automated registration is currently underway.  The project has two phases with full implementation to 
be in place for the Fall 2013 admissions/registration cycle.  Phase I has been completed to allow for a 
new online (mobile) delivery mode created and updated in GeneSIS.  This project is being completed 
in collaboration with the Academic area and IIRTS. 
 
OSAP Modernization 
P
finalized.  The OSAP m
First'; a plan to ensure that all qualified Ontario students have access to the high-quality, affordable 
training and education needed to ensure success.  The OSAP modernization process was effective 


6 
 







this Fall 2012 term and the aim of the program was to streamline the application process for the over 
300,000 OSAP applicants and recipients.  Algonquin College was the first to complete the automated 
confirmation of enrolment process for the benefit of our students. 
 
Student Assistance Bursary 
The Registrar’s Office reports the largest in-take for the Fall 2012 Student Assistance Bursary.  A 


d an on-line bursary application which is currently being adjudicated; 


ffective October 1, 2012, credit cards were no longer accepted as a payment method for full-time 
.  Payment for full-time program tuition fees at Algonquin College can still be 


 by removing the option to pay by 
redit card, we are freeing up resources that will be invested in our programs.  Feedback from 


total of 3,876 students submitte
students will be notified within the next week. This compares to 3,456 applications received last fall 
which is an 11.2% increase. 
 
Credit Card Policy 
E
program tuition fees
made through online banking, debit, cheque, money order or cash.  This change affected full-time 
students and part-time students registered in full-time programs. 
 
Algonquin College is committed to investing in our students and
c
students, parents, faculty and staff, to date, has been mixed, and, many students paid prior to the 
October 1, 2012 date in order to pay 2012–13 fees with their credit cards.  2013-14 Fall term 
payments will confirm the full effect of this decision. 
 
Foundation 
Donations received for the Robert C. Gillett Award and the Kurt O. Waldele Bursary. 


ndowment Funds Received: April 1, 2011-October 18, 2011: $29,251 


dges: April 1, 2012 –October 18, 2012: $234,135  
ndowment Fund Confirmed Pledges: April 1, 2011-October 18, 2011: $213,386 


al awards 
he following non-endowed awards, scholarships and bursaries established:  


ren’s Aid Foundation Durham (General), Children’s Aid 


1, 2012-October 18, 2012: $240,010 
nnual Funds Received : April 1, 2011- October 18, 2011: $163,945 


rd Disbursments 
isbursements April 1, 2012-October 18, 2012: $348,578 


0,010 


 
• Foundation Board of Directors Meeting held October 4, 2012. 


umni Advisory Committee meeting held October 9, 2012. 
mber 3, 2012 from 12:00 p.m. 


mber 


 
Endowment Funds Received :April 1, 2012-October 18, 2012: $150,435 
E
(88% increase over 2011-2012) 
 
Endowment Fund Confirmed Ple
E
(9% increase over 2011-2012) 
 
Confirmed non-endowed annu
T
The Winnipeg Foundation (General), Chid
Foundation-Quinte (General). 
 
Annual Funds Received : April 
A
(32% increase over 2011-2012) 
 
Bursary, Scholarship and Awa
D
Disbursements April 1, 2011-October 18, 2011: $24
(32% increase over 2011-2012) 
 
Foundation - Alumni Relations


• First Algonquin College Al
• Alumni Algonquin Retiree Christmas Lunch confirmed for Dece


to 2:00 p.m. at the Restaurant International.  Last retiree Christmas Social held Dece
2005. 


Capital Campaigns 


7 
 







 
(i) Completed Constructing OUR Future Pledge Payments: 


The Campaign total was over $7.5-M, exceeding the $7-M goal. Most gifts were pledged 
ars. Confirming and receiving each annual donation requires effective donor 


d ongoing stewardship.  


 
(ii)  Community Our Future Campaign-Perth 


onfirmed new $100,000 pledge in writing from donor.  Gift to be announced later in 


 


se from 2011) 
ote:  During the above time period in 2011 three donors made one time contributions 


,000 on a $25,000 that 
tion the one time Perth 


on June 2011 and revenue from ticket sales and auction 


 
Major G ram: 
Until this year, our GIK program was "reactive" and mainly included unsolicited GIK donations 
with the rs, if outliers of higher value are 
omitted, the average gift range for our reactive GIK program is between $75,000 and $160,000 in 


ed: April 1, 2012 to October 18th, 2012: $20,495 


rocessed (approximate values shown): 
5,000 (value TBD) 


•


 company names are not included (approximate value 


soon; could double) 


Not ot been included here. 
 
Abo


over 5 ye
relations an
 
Cash/Pledge payments – April 1, 2012 to October 18th, 2012: $380,523.84.  


Ongoing Building Our College Our
C
November. 


Cash/Pledge payments April 1, 2012-October 18, 2012: $29,950 
Cash/Pledge Payments April 1, 2011-October 18, 2011: $92,612 
(68% decrea
N
totaling: $49,000 and one donor made an initial payment of $10
has since had an adjusted pay period moving forward.  In addi
Cocktail Reception was held 
items would have been received. 
 
Campaign Pledges to date October 18, 2012: $556,570 


ifts and Partnerships / GIK Prog


 vast majority of gifts under $5,000 in value. In past yea


any given year. 
 
Major Gifts  or GIK Confirmed to date: 
• Hydro One: $187,500 Cash Donation 
• GIK Process


GIK Confirmed but not yet delivered / p
• Ciena: GIK delivered and installed; $16
 Magor: $70,000 (final value TBD based on quantity delivered) 
• Irwin Tools: $16,000 (app. value) 
• Emerson/Rigid: $8,792.06 


TOTAL Major Gifts and Partnerships / GIK Program  
Confirmed to date (approximate value): $ 467,787 
 
GIK Currently under negotiation so
only): 
• $40,000 
• $250,000 plus (inventory/valuation 


e: GIK included in Research Funding Submissions have n


riginal Student Services/Mamidosewin Centre 
e September 17, 2012, an additional 19 students have registered with the Mamidosewin Centre Sinc


n about events and resources. This brings the total number of students who have 
ate; a number close to the total for all of 2011-2012. 


to receive informatio
registered to 121 year-to-d
 


8 
 







For the period of September 17 to October 11, an average 69.8 students per day have come to the  
amidoswin Centre to use the gathering space, kitchenette, and Mobile Learning Centre; with the 


. This represents a 115% increase in average 


on Saturdays; with no 
ore than 5 visitors reported on a given Saturday year-to-date.  


valuation surveys not yet compiled.) 


pport services from the post-secondary institutions of the National Capital 
that would commonly benefit all Aboriginal PSE 


eton University, Heritage 


or the period of September 17 to October 16 Aboriginal Counsellor, Kim Smith, completed 54 


M
current peak day being 84 students on September 26th


daily student vists recorded for 2011-2012.  This seems to indicate that the expanded capacity of the 
new Mamidosewin Centre seems to have translated into an increase in student use. One noteable 
observation is the fact that few students are visiting the Mamidosewin Centre 
m
 
For the period of September 17 to October 21, 2012, The Mamidosewin Centre hosted a series of 
special events, including: 


o Full Moon Ceremony for Aboriginal women; 
o Storytelling event with renowned Aboriginal author, Tomson Highway; 
o Mamidosewin Grand Opening Event (coinciding with the Grand Opening event of the Student 


Commons). 
(E
 
The Aboriginal student su
Region have a history of jointly offering events 
students in Ottawa. On September 22, 2012, Algonquin partnered with Carl
College, and University of Ottawa to host a joint student Pow Wow.  (Evaluation surveys not yet 
compiled). 
 
F
counselling appointments with 32 separate students. The most common reported presenting issues 
were academic performance/planning or financial distress. 
 
Centre for Students with Disabilities 
CSD participated in the launch of both ICopeU, and ‘Starting the Conversation’, on October 2, 2012.  


epresentatives from both Canadian Mental Health Association and the Mental Health Commission 


ready for review, as of October 5, 2012.  
aculty members were chosen from each school and campus and sent the drafts.  There are three 


inutes each.  An evaluation was included. The modules are 


aluations reviewed, and any adjustments made, the module will be available to 
all faculty through the Faculty Portal, with open caption and described video options.  


ist by providing 
earning Disability assessments to those apprentice students who require them. 


R
of Canada attended.  


 
The “Starting the Conversation” faculty module pilot was 
F
modules, which are approximately 20 m
designed for all full and part-time faculty at Algonquin and meant as an introduction to Mental Health 
Awareness. The resource section is not included in the pilot, but will be quite extensive.  Once the 
CSD staff have the ev


 
Toni Connolly applied for additional funding in the beginning of September to increase the CSD 
budget in the apprentice support area. The numbers of students the CSD is supporting in 
Apprenticeship programs has doubled in each of the past three years. Through Ministry Support for 
Apprentices with Disabilities (SAWD) funding, the CSD received an additional $77,000. With this 
money it is hoped that the department can increase its learning strategist resources, as the part-time 
hours have not been enough to keep up with demand. This funding will also ass
L


 
October 1, 2012, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m., Autism Ontario hosted an Information night for local families 
with children/youth with Asperger’s Syndrome.  It was held at the Jim Durrell Community Centre.  
CSD Manager, Toni Connolly represented Algonquin College/CSD at this fair.  It was a good 
opportunity to network with other service providers in the local area.  
 
Counselling Services 
For the period of September 17 to October 5, (October 6-21 data not yet available), Counselling 
Services completed a total of 352 counselling sessions with 210 separate students; an average of 
25.1 sessions per day, and a 17% increase over the same period in 2011.  Of those 352 sessions, 32 


9 
 







were designated as “urgent” sessions in response to the student’s request to meet with a counsellor 
immediately (9.1% of the total sessions).  (Note: The rate of urgent sessions was not tracked in 


011.)  


period of September 17 to October 5, the Welcome Centre reports that they have been able 
 meet 94% of student requests for an appointment with a Counsellor.  This rate is comparable to the 


 general, Counselling Services has been effectively meeting the demand for services.  Since 
.1 appointments per day; 


ith an average of 5.25 sessions remaining unbooked and average of 1.4 booked sessions resulting 


ember 17 to October 5, Counselling Services provided information services for 
8 prospective students requesting program selection guidance.  This rate is comparable to the same 


Algonquin’s 
tudent Association and Student Support Services, and is designed to increase mental health 


ich featured addresses from College President Kent MacDonald, SA President David 
orson, and guest Steven Page. 


2
 
Academic/career planning (27%) and stress/anxiety (19%) were the most reported presenting issues 
among students during their initial assessment.  
 
Five (2.3%) students reported that they had thoughts of attempting suicide. 
 
For the 
to
same period in 2011. 
 
In
September 4, 2012, Counselling Services has completed an average of 25
w
in a student no-show (these last 2 averages are comparable to the same period in 2011). 
 
For the period of Sept
7
period in 2011. 
 
On October 2, 2012, Student Support Services launched ICopeU.com/Algonquin as a part of Mental 
Illness Awareness Week.  Algonquin’s ICopeU website is a joint initiative between 
S
awareness among Algonquin students and provide students with 24/7 connection to the support 
resources on campus and in their community.  Approximately 300 staff and students attended the 
launch event; wh
C
 
Director of Student Support Services 
 
On September 24, Shelley Styles, started in the position of Director of Student Support Services, and 
is enjoying and adjusting to her new role.   One of the first tasks for the Support Services 
Management Team with the support of Denyce Diakun, Director of Workforce and Personal 
Development was to prepare and submit a Mental Health proposal in response to the Mental Health 


novation Fund Call for Proposals, from the Ministry of Training, Colleges and Universities.  Should 
 be granted, it will assist in providing additonal mental 


ealth/addiction resources and help on the College campus. 


In
the $2.3M, multi-year, funding request
h
 
The Employment Support Centre; Student Affairs and Orientation; Student Success Service 
 
The Employment Support Centre (ESC) 
 
The ESC statistics certainly reflect the impact of last years’ labour disruption that was experienced 
during the Fall 2011 semester.  The table below outlines last year’s statistics to this year’s. 
 


COMPARISON 


Mid‐Sept. to  Mid‐Sept. to 
Mid Oct., 2011  Mid Oct., 2012 


Department  Department 
# of students  # of students 


promotion / # of 
class visits 


promotion / # of 
class visits 


seen  seen 


 
Department  
class v 80  61 


 promotion
isits, students  2  1 16  6


10 
 







 
Résumé/Employment class 
presentations, students 


2  80  12  526 


 


COMPARISON 
Mid‐Sept. to  Mid‐Sept. to 
Mid Oct., 2011  M Oct., 201id  2 


Events attended  0 (due to labour disruption)  3 
Number of students 
served at the 3 events 


0 (d  labour disruption)  304 ue to


  
Number of students who 
participa


nd cover 
ted in drop‐in 


services résumé a
letter review 


38  58 


  
Total number of students 


298 (180+80+38)  1,549 (661+526+304+58) 
served 


 
Popular emplo ampus Conn ns job fair hosted September 13, 2012: 
Canada Reven tawa, Public Service Commission, and Volunteer Ottawa. 
 
On-campus recruitment activity during the Fall 2012 sem ster including the following companies: 
Schlumberger, loitte. 


 
his past month the Employment Support Centre had 139 new employers create profiles, 233 new 


rom a three member team to a six member team) 


e in a movie theatre 
 year


yers on campus during the C
ue Agency, CIBC, City of Ot


ectio


e
 Thales, Investors Group, De


T
jobs posted and 4,523 emails pushed out to graduates promoting local employment opportunities 
through the Web-based job posting system MyCareerZone implemented in January 2012.  
MyCareerZone will generate comparison data, unlike the previous system used. 
 
Student Affairs and Orientation (SAO) 
Due to the growth of the SAO promotional team (f
our video presence, events and the volunteer opportunities have grown.   


 
Movie Night 
Student Affairs and Orientation in partnership with the Students’ Association, host a free Movie Night 
each month. This passive programming allows students to relax and participat
experience without the cost.  New this , the SAO hosted a movie night in the Algonquin 


 theatre appeal, as well as 
omotion of events at Orientation.  


Commons Theatre. Approximately 600 students attended. In years past, 60-80 students would 
participate in Movie Night (it was hosted in a classroom- not the same atmosphere as a movie 
theatre).   This program has grown significantly because of the authentic
through the pr


 
New Music New Places 
This monthly event highlights different parts of the College by bringing music to unique places on 
campus.  An example of these areas would be: the rooftop classroom and the live wall at the ACCE 
building, the N building theatre, the library, and other locations.  New Music New Places gives an 
artsy/community feel to the campus and is hosted by both the Students’ Association and Student 
Affairs and Orientation.   The numbers have grown this year from an average of 50-60 students per 
show to 120-150 students per show.  


 
Volunteerism on Campus 
SAO has taken the initiative to engage students both on the campus and in the local/global 


11 
 







community.  All of these initiatives are being connected into the new co-curricular record program.  
Since the beginning of August 2012, policies and procedures, outlines of eligibility criteria, learning 
outcomes, and general information have been researched and drafted by the newly hired Co-
curricular Coordinator. 


 
Research was conducted by the Co-Curricular Coordinator to collect pertinent information to draft 


hone meetings with other Canadian institutions (Concordia University, 


lgonquin College’s IIRTS department to begin planning the online portal and 
related content. 


ommunity through projects ranging from 
recr ation programming to helping local food banks.  Transportation, a t-shirt and snacks are 


Alternative Spring Break 
ected and received regarding an Alternative Spring Break event, and 21 


is experience is to provide an Authentic Service 
Learning Experience through the style of Alternative Spring Break. Overall, it will be connected to the 


ce by taking the skills learned in the classroom and applying them in this 


pants share with others the impact of the experience they have 


he educational component? 
es; 


 learning outcomes according to the trip needs; 


 application criteria 
e students to supervise 


dividually and in groups to pay their airfare, and supply 


these documents through p
Dalhousie University, University of Calgary, Carleton University and Wilfred Laurier University) in 
various program stages of their own co-curricular record.  


 
At the beginning of September, the Co-Curricular Coordinator began working with Orbis 
Communications and A


 
Community Projects 
New to the campus this year, the SAO creates monthly community projects for students. Students 
have the opportunity to get involved in the Ottawa c


e
provided to the volunteers. To date, all of the community projects have been sold out. This ranges 
from 20-30 Algonquin College students per project. 


 


Applications were coll
students have been selected to spend their reading week in the Dominican Republic.  This is a new 
collaborative event between Student Affairs and Orientation and Residence Life.  Beginning October 
24, 2012, these two areas will host weekly meetings to prepare for the experience.   Students will 
have an opportunity to experience the Dominican culture, its social issues and to teach English to 
children living in an orphanage.  The purpose of th


Algonquin Student Experien
environment. It will also help expose Algonquin students to different experiences; one that will be 
unique to their Algonquin Experience. While preparing for this service/experience abroad, students 
will be preparing and meeting regularly with the Trip Supervisors/Advisors, and the Student Leaders. 
These meetings will facilitate learning outcomes and training initiatives to prepare our students for 
what is to come. The Trip Leaders, with our senior leaders, will facilitate these meetings.  Some of the 
topics will include: 


• The Dominican population; 
• Outreach 360 (the people, the service); 
• Living conditions expectations; 
• Team building; 
• Critical reflections and questioning:  


a) How do you prepare yourself to handle the issues of race, gender, and class? 
b) How do you engage in dialogue with people? What is appropriate discussion? 
c) How can the trip partici


been a part of? 
d) How can the trip participants bridge t


• Linking to the College Core valu
• Setting appropriate
• Fundraising initiatives; 
• Education in Canada vs. Education in the Dominican (comparisons); 
• Preparation (Health), what to pack, what inoculations are required.  


 
 sTwenty-one  accepted to participate through the pre-defined


ied, and two Algonquin College staff members will be travelling with th
tudents were


identif
the project.  Students will fundraise both in


12 
 







drives will collect items for the students at the orphanage.  
 
Health Services 
On September 17, Sandra McCormick started in her role as the new Manager of Health Services. 
 
Statistical Usage Data: 
September 18 - October 21, 2012 (5 weeks, 29 working days) 
There were 6,131 clients served in five weeks, with an average of 1,226 weekly and 160 per day.  
19% of clients saw a physician and 49% saw a nurse.  Dietician services resumed with an average of 


 clients seen on Saturdays.  Psychiatrist services resum4 ed on October 15th.   This year, usage of 
has increased by 11% over last year, same time while physician visits have 


er, 


on language being promoted among physicians and nurses, the 


 
ing with the Pembroke campus to have Electronic Medical Record up and 


nursing services 
remained relatively consistent.  Overall usage of Health Services has increased slightly.  Howev


e same compliment of nurses (hours per week) are seeing significantly more clients than same time th
period last year. 
 
The Health Services renovation plan has gone to RFP and contractors viewed the clinic and old CSD 
area on October 4, 2012.  The goal is for construction to begin in November 2012, with the plan to 
keep Health Services running as normal as possible during the construction period which is slated to 
be completed in February 2013. 
 
Manager, Sandra McCormick, is making contact with other post-secondary health services looking for 
new ideas to implement.   


 
Community partnerships are being discussed to promote various aspects of student health, primarily 
mental health issues that will assist students staying in school while experiencing challenging 
circumstances.   


 
hrough the usage of a commT


Electronic Medical Records Project will allow reports to be compiled based on prevalence of top 
presenting problems in Health Services; and help determine health promotion topics for the future. 
Sandra McCormick is work
running.  
 
Recruitment of a permanent nurse and possible physician for Perth campus is also underway. 
 
Peer Tutoring 
The demand for Peer Tutoring continues to grow.  During the period between September 17 to 
October 12, Peer Tutoring booked 825 tutoring sessions; an 11% increase over the same period in 
2011. 
 


he start of the 201T 2-2013 academic year also marks the launch of a new service/administration 
 for 20 
clerk to 


nal administrative tasks, such as processing tutor time sheets, but allows the kiosk to 


model for Peer Tutoring. The service now uses student employees to staff the service kiosk
ours per week; an increase from 10 hours last year. This not only frees the Peer Tutoring h


complete additio
remain open an additional 2 hours to 6:00 p.m., Monday through Thursday. 
 
Residence 
September 17 to 20, Faculty Meet and Greets 


24 to 28, Alcohol Awareness Week  
events surrounding safe and responsible drinking.  


Residence Life and the Student Success Centre collaborated on a new initiative to engage Faculty in 
the Residence community.  Residence students were invited to attend a BBQ within their faculty to 
meet the President, Chair/Dean of their program, a variety of professors, and students.  Well over 80 
students engaged and interacted in this event.  Faculty had the opportunity to tour the Residence, 
and explore the environment the students live in. 


 
September 
Approximately 125 students attended the various 


13 
 







MADD set up a table and provided resources while students performed an obstacle course that 
simulated intoxication. Another event had students playing root beer pong while providing facts of 
safe drinking-and the dangers of binge drinking.   


 
October 5 and 6, Thanksgiving Outreach  
On October 5, the Alcohol Free Community hosted a potluck for their section, and had over 15 


 students participated in this event.  This event was 
a new initiative hosted by the Residence. 


-2012.  At the end of the month the SA and Residence Life collaborated on 
the Intramurals project. On Sunday, September 30, the Residence had 60 people participate in this 


e of ‘Dodge ball’. 


and fourth Sunday of each month, and are a way for 
communities to address issues, discuss trends and problem solve. The floor meeting focused on 


students in attendance. 
 


October 6  
A building-wide Thanksgiving event was held, and special invitations went out to International 
students who were staying in the building. Over 30


 
Residence Intramurals is another new initiative based on the popularity of Residence-wide 
competition during 2011


month’s them
 


Floor Meeting and Section Meetings were held on Sunday September 30 and Sunday October 14th.  
These meetings occur on the second 


Alcohol Awareness and Prevention, while the section meeting opened the dialogue for Sexual Health 
Awareness. These meetings also provide a point of contact for the student and the Resident Advisor. 
 
Test Centre 
The Test Centre (TC) was closed for the week of October 8 to 12, 2012, due to scheduled expansion 


arks an 11% increase in volume in testing services offered to clients. 


 fact that the TC was 
losed for one week for renovations during the 2012 reporting period. The Test Centre is on target to 


the aforementioned reporting 
eriod were 192 bundles/7,727 sheets.  For the comparable reporting period in 2011, it was 277 


renovations.  The renovations are on target to be largely completed by Friday, October 19, 2012. The 
new test room is targeted to be available for use by Monday, October 22, 2012. 
 
TC services volumes offered to clients from September 18 to October 21, 2012, were 532 candidates 
compared to 2011, where 478 candidates were offered services in the comparable time period. This 
m
 
TC revenues for the aforementioned reporting period are $15,607.70.  The revenues from the 
comparable reporting period for 2011 (September 20 to October 23, 2011) were $15,106.30.  This is 
a 3.3% increase in revenue, which is comparable to the previous year, given the
c
meet its revenue target for 2012-2013 of $330,000. 
 
TC Mark Analysis volumes processed for the College by the TC for 
p
bundles/9,906 sheets.  This significantly lower number of Marks Analysis bundles processed may be 
explained by the fact that the 2011 Support Staff Strike ended on September 19, 2011, at which point 
there was an abnormally large accumulation of Marks Analysis bundles to be processed by the TC. 
 
Welcome Centre 
Throughout the past month, the Welcome Centre Supervisor has continued to work closely with the 


d 
epartmental staff meetings to speak about communication dynamics and client flow directly with 


ployment Officers.   


College’s Business Process Review Manager to observe client flow in the accessing of Student 
Support Services in the Student Commons via the new service platform.  Observations, comments 
and client feedback are regularly being vetted and shared with the Student Support Services 
Management Team, with changes and enhancements being made wherever possible to enhance this 
new service layer to clients.  In addition, the Welcome Centre Supervisor has been invited to atten
d
Counsellors and Em
  
During the time period encompassing Monday, September 17 to Friday, October 5, the Welcome 


14 
 







Centre provided service to 1,223 clients. 
 
Area 5 ACADEMIC 
Algonquin College in the Ottawa Valley 
After 17 months of construction and yea


en. Students started arriving for classe
rs of planning, the new Waterfront Campus in Pembroke is 


s at 7:30 am on Monday, October 29, 2012 and were 


rk, next door to the Ottawa River, providing a 
ar setting fo us.  


llence 


th Irwin Tools, CTV Morning Life recorded a segment, part 
f which highlighted Algonquin College programs and the skilled aspect of skilled trades. 


ntario obtained a 91% success rate. This is an increase from recent years. 


obtained a pass rating. 


ire in the new Student 
ommons. 


 the Restaurant International. The goal of presenting work 
lacement and co-op opportunities was well received. 


2 potential returning students. 


-four different organizations.  


 to support the following research projects:  a math 


op
greeted by the STAR 96 Radio Morning Show and Student Services staff. The $36-million campus 
features 16 classrooms, 9 specialized labs, a gymnasium, fitness centre, two-storey library and a 


tudent Commons. It is situated in a public paS
spectacul
 


r a college camp


Algonquin Centre for Construction Exce
On September 21, 2012, CBC Ottawa News filmed a segment highlighting the popularity and value of 
trades training at Algonquin College. A Welding student was interviewed, along with the Chair of the 
Construction Trades and Building Systems Department and the Coordinator of the Powerline 
Technician program.   
 
On September 20, 2012, in partnership wi
o
 
Algonquin Heritage Institute 
Eighteen Continuing Education (CE) courses are successfully being delivered this semester during 
evenings and on weekends. This is an outstanding achievement as CE activity level has been low the 
last few years.  
 
School of Health and Community Studies  
The Practical Nursing students who wrote their licensure examinations with the College of Nurses of 
O
 
Graduates of the Paramedic program obtained an average pass rate of 83% on their Ministry of 
Health’s Certificate (A-EMCA) exam this summer.  This is the 11th year in a row that a 100% of our 
graduates have 
 
School of Hospitality and Tourism 
New packaging and labeling for the School’s line of preserves and condiments called “La Dolce Vitae” 
has been completed. These items are now available for sale in Savoir Fa
C
 
The School hosted a VIP reception for Human Resources Managers who are members of the Ottawa 
Gatineau Hotel Association (OGHA) in
p
 
Centre for Continuing and Online Learning  
To date, the Centre has received 529 applications for online program intakes in Winter 2013.  As well, 
there are 28
 
Applied Research and Innovation 
Forty-three applications were received and approved for applied research In-Class Projects.  These 
projects are being conducted in collaboration with thirty
 
The Academic Health Council provided funding
literacy pilot, a biology knowledge assessment, and a focused mental health initiative in the School of 
Health and Community Studies. 
 
Learning and Teaching Services 


15 
 







The Library Communications Committee hosted the first annual Library Orientation week October 15-
20, 2012. Events included daily research workshops which allowed for the forging of new connections 


ith faculty and over 50 students. 


ded a Standing Offer by the House of Commons to provide a variety 
f business professional training services over the next three years. The Standing Offer enables the 


ctly with Corporate Training for delivery of a range of professional 


al Education Centre, Corporate Training secured contract delivery 
 Occupational Safety workshops for the Sustainable Management Group in Saudi Arabia in early 


 of this contact is $15K. 


and employers on October 16, 2012. Over 200 IEPs, 100 employers and 
ommunity partners attended. The conference was funded by the Ministry of Citizenship and 


ternational Education Centre 
emorandum of Understanding for establishing Algonquin 


school visits, seminars for prospective students, and training sessions with agents. 


 2012. 


tudent/Alumni Activity 
d a luncheon for the Organization for Economic Co-operation and 


tality Management - Hotel and Restaurant program have obtained 


ental Hygiene students took part in the Run for a Cure. 


l Writer students are working with the Applied Research Institute to provide report writing 
ervices for students involved in applied research projects. 


all of Remembrance to be created on the ground of the Military Communications 
nd Electronics Museum at CFB Kingston. 


w
  
Corporate Training 
In October, the College was awar
o
House of Commons to contract dire
training workshops. 
 
In collaboration with the Internation
of
November. The value
 
Workforce and Personal Development 
Workforce and Personal Development hosted a conference for Internationally Education 
Professionals (IEP) 
c
Immigration. The Honorable Charles Sousa, Ontario Minister of Citizenship and Immigration sent his 
congratulations. 
 
In
The formal signing ceremony of the M
College – Kuwait was held at the Woodroffe Campus on October 18, 2012. 
 
International Recruitment Officers recently attended events in China, Vietnam, Thailand, India, 
Indonesia, the United Kingdom, Brazil and Colombia. These events included Canadian Embassy 
Education Fairs, 
 
Academic Development 
The Ministerial Renewal of Consent Application for the Bachelor of Applied Arts (Interior Design) was 
submitted to the Minister, Training, Colleges and Universities on October 16,
 
The Site Visit towards the Ministerial Renewal of Consent for the Bachelor of Applied Business (e-
Business Supply Chain Management) program was held on October 29 and 30, 2012.  
 
S
Restaurant International hoste
Development (OECD) delegation on October 2, 2012. The luncheon was prepared and served by 
Culinary Arts students.  
 
Parks Canada is working with Culinary Arts professors and second-year students to test heritage 
recipes. 
 
Graduates of the Hospi
employment as general managers of the Hilton Garden Inn Airport, Les Suite Hotel, and the Country 
Inn in the Ottawa. 
 
D
 
Technica
s
 
Students in the Applied Museum Studies program have submitted concept proposals to a competition 
for the National W
a


16 
 







 
Students from the Architectural Technician, Architectural Technology, Green Architecture, Interior 


ason Blaine, Business graduate, Algonquin College in the Ottawa Valley and former Board of 


ichelle van Zetten, graduate of the BAA Interior Design program, won one of the “Top 5 Under 5” 


talent of up-and-coming interior 
esigners and is awarded to those who have worked in their profession for less than five years. 


lity and Tourism completed her Learning Disability 
pecialist Certificate through Cambrian College and is now assisting students with learning 


reative Cartooning and Illustration Professor, Centre for Continuing and 


im Kyte, Chair, Marketing and Management Studies received his MBA at the Royals Road University 


 thesis or graduate project, in the same 
eremony. 


ity and Tourism hosted the 2012 Ottawa Tourism Stars of the City Recognition 
vening on October 24, 2012. There were 410 front-line staff from Ottawa and the surrounding region 


n October 23, 2012, the School of Hospitality and Tourism and the Children’s Wish Foundation of 
 event to announce that the students in the Event Management program are 


 - http://online.wsj.com/article/PR-CO-20121023-


Design and Interior Decorating programs participated in a CMHC City of Ottawa Design Charrette on 
October 12-14, 2012. 
 
Amir Dolatabadi, a foreign-trained physician and Language Institute alumni, successfully passed his 
medical exams and has found employment in Medicine Hat, Alberta. 
 
J
Governors student representative, won his first Canadian Country Music Association award for his hit 
single “They Don’t Make ‘Em Like That Anymore.” 
 
M
awards given out by Interior Designers of Canada (IDC) at the International Interior Design Exposition 
(IIDEX) in September 2012. This award is designed to highlight the 
d
 
Faculty/Staff Activities 
Doris Fiszer, Professor, English, School of Hospita
S
strategies. 
 
Lisa Lamarre O’Gorman, Manager, Early Learning Centre received the Prime Minister’s Award for 
Excellence in Early Childhood Education on October 4, 2012. 
 
Sheree Bradford-Lea, C
Online Learning, has signed on as the editorial cartoonist for Ottawa's new weekly online publication, 
Blacklock's Reporter.  
 
J
Convocation in Victoria, British Columbia on October 23, 2012. He was also awarded the Governor 
General’s Gold Academic Medal, which is awarded to the best
c
 
Community Activity 
The School of Hospital
E
who attended the event.  Ottawa Tourism established and manages the Stars of the City program to 
educate and encourage customer service excellence – and to recognize those who deliver it. 
Algonquin College is a sponsor of this program. 
 
O
Canada held a media
working to raise $1M for the Foundation.  Each year, students plan and execute a variety of 
fundraising events with the assistance of students from other programs in the School. In the past five 
years, $445K has been raised. The School is committed to this goal in order to highlight the important 
role educators play in teaching corporate social responsibility to our future leaders. This item was 
picked up by the Wall Street Journal
911885.html?mod=crnews 
 
On October 2, 2012, Algonquin Reads hosted an entertaining reading by Terry Fallis, author of this 
year’s Algonquin Reads book, “The Best Laid Plans”. 
 
Algonquin College supported the Medical Devices Summit, a conference on developing a National 
Medical Devices Strategy. The Director of Applied Research and Innovation participated on two panel 
discussions on education’s partnerships. 


17 
 







 
Donations 


. Mehra is a 2005 graduate of the Culinary 
anagement program. 


he Aboriginal Human Resources Council donated six lounge chairs. Four are in the Mamidosewin 
he other two are in the Experienced Worker Centre. 


pital campaign. 


ician 
tudents. Mr. Dunfield is a WWII veteran who worked many years in the Forestry industry with the 


Nitin Mehra, CEO, The East Indian Spice Company has donated samples of imported, authentic 
spices for use in the Culinary Arts programs.  Mr
M
 
The Canadian Gas Association presented a charitable donation to the Kurt O. Waldele Bursary. 
 
T
Centre and t
 
KI Pembroke, a local office furniture manufacturer, announced a $25K donation to Algonquin College 
in the Ottawa Valley’s ca
 
Mr. John Dunfield, Pembroke donated $10K to establish a new bursary for Forestry Techn
s
federal government. 
 
Area 7 ADVANCEMENT 
SALES AND STUDENT RECRUITMENT 
 
Presentations (High School, University, Employment Centres) and Events: 
Thirty day period ending September 30, 2012 – 80 campaigns 
Thirty day period ending September 30, 2011 – 39 campaigns 
 
Recruitmen
Thirty day


t Genera : 
 period end 2 – 622 leads 


11 – 166 leads 
 


rning conference followed by lunch at 


he day’s agenda included:  
nald 


, Educational Technology and Teaching 


• Top 10 Student Success Tips - Student Success Specialists Lisa Lamb, 
dy  


tor, Applied Research and Innovation  
mons 


ent success specialists. Anne Kalil, Manager, Recruitment acted as Master of 


nto at the Direct 
t of the 


s it attracts over 60,000 prospective students from the GTA 


 six week tour of the province that is hosted by the local college and 
articipation from most of the colleges and OCAS with a focus of promoting to high school students 


ted New Leads Collected
ing September 30, 201


Thirty day period ending September 30, 20


Significant Accomplishments: 
Forum 2012:  Hosted 99 guidance counselors on-site for a mo
the Restaurant International on October 11, 2012. 
T
• Welcoming Remarks by President Kent MacDo
• Digital College presentation - Chair Farbod Karimi


Services 


Karen Gendron and Dan Cud
• New Programs Review - Jo-Ann Aubut, Acting Dean, Academic Development;  
• Applied Research by Mark Hoddenbagh, Direc
• A tour of the Student Com
 
The event also included a trade-show style presentation of student services, admissions, academic 
Faculties, and stud
Ceremonies for the event.   
 
Student Life Expo: The College Recruiters attended a three day event in Toro
Energy Conference Centre.  This weekend event piggy-backed on the University Fair.   Mos
provinces colleges attend this event a
 
College Information Program (CIP): One of Algonquin’s Recruiters headed to Thunder Bay to the 
annual two week northern recruitment tour visiting the local college and high schools to promote 
Algonquin College. CIP is a
p
and influencers. 


18 
 







 
School Of Business: Advancement welcomed Laura Campbell to the team as part of a pilot project 


hich will see the position report to the Director of Sales and Student Recruitment rather than the 


ARKETING 


eptember 2013: 1607 


Hired two I/O positions: digital recruiter and web designer. 
all marketing awareness campaign; this year, the campaign will be a continuous effort 


from now until end of fiscal year. 
 launched a new corporate brand for all campuses 


al signage, new themed environmental graphics in C and N buildings, 
rs and digital assets. 


Website, business cards and name tags processes have been updated with new branding logos. 
enrolment for Horticulture Technician program resulted in an 


20 programs being identified for the 


 been launched, 17 remain at the rate of approximately 2 


 


all satisfaction rate of 77.5%.  


e Robert C. Gillett Student Commons


w
Dean, with the goal of increasing enrolment to the School of Business.   
 
Campus Tours: An Employee Handbook was developed with the aim of providing Student 
Ambassadors with a comprehensive training tool. 
 
M
 
Marketing Generated New Leads Collected: 
September 2012:  888 
S
 
Significant Accomplishments: 
• 
• Launched f


• Rebranding – Since June, Marketing has
including all extern
school/faculty banne


• 
• Pilot program to increase 


oversubscription.  That success has lead to a further 
enrolment boost campaign work with each of the Faculty Marketing Officers from each school and 
campus. Three campaigns have
programs every three weeks. 


• Drafted a Degree Marketing Plan to support the School of Business e-Business degree 
accreditation review. 


• Performed an A/B test on the home page with the goal of improving future student flow through
on the website. 


• Integrated lead capture forms for viewbook and piloted lead capture on the College’s social media 
channels for the purpose of increasing lead collection. 


• Website satisfaction survey issued to stakeholders. The initial results by over 150 participants 
surveyed demonstrate an over


 
EVENTS 
 
Official Opening of th  


C. Gillett Student Commons on Thursday, 


ended by some 300 staff, students, 
nd external guests.  Speakers included Barbara Farber from the Board of Governors, SA President 


son (who officially announced the naming of the building), past president Robert Gillett, and 
resident Kent MacDonald.  The event was enhanced by performances from Aboriginal Drumming 


ws”.  Past SA President Jacob Sancartier, 


Worked with the Students’ Association, Ancillary Services, Student Services, and Physical Resources 
to host the official opening ceremonies for the new Robert 
October 18th.  Vice President Student Services Laura Stanbra and Students’ Association (SA) Vice 
President Jennifer Courville co-emceed the event which was att
a
David Cor
P
Band ‘Bear Nation’ and singer Colin MacDonald of ‘The Tre
along with SA Manager Jack Doyle and former Vice President Deborah Rowan-Legg joined the guest 
speakers in an official ribbon cutting to signal the official opening of the building. 
 
President’s Star Awards 
Presented awards to:  Christine Doody and Lynn Berry (School of Business). 
 
GOVERNMENT RELATIONS 
 
Announcement by Minister Vic Toews 


19 
 







20 
 


 October 17Hosted The Honourable Vic Toews, Minister of Public Safety, on Wednesday, th as he 
nnounced the government’s funding to further implement Canada’s Cyber Security Strategy and 


rts to achieve a secure, stable, and resilient digital infrastructure. 


TERNAL AND EXTERNAL COMMUNICATIONS 


ocial Media 
eading Canadian college on social media with a Klout score of 


ver social 
edia. It is ranked from 1-100. 


ver 700 tweets were sent from the @AlgonquinColleg account in the past month time. The 
lleg account added over 350 new followers, bringing the new total to approximately 


ublic Relations and Communications has sent 5 press releases and media advisories during the 


n’s New Emergency Procedures Mobile Application  


hris Wojcik comments on the dangers of raising children in a competitive 


e: 
September 20 – The Ottawa Business Journal published an interview with College President Kent 


llege. 


story about Parks Canada visiting Algonquin College 
es.  


uit graduating service, which 


a
strengthen Canada’s effo
 
IN
 
S
Algonquin College continues to be the l
65. The next closest college is Humber, with a score of 59. Algonquin College also moved up to 
number eight among all Canadian postsecondary institutions from number nine. Klout score is 
calculated based on output, number of followers, and number of interactions received o
m
 
O
@AlgonquinCo
8,650 followers. 
 
The“Algonquin College” Facebook page has grown to 2,135 likes. 
 
Media Relations  
P
month of September on the following topics: 


• Student Residence Move-in Weekend  
• Algonqui
• Campus Connections Job Fair 
• NHL lockout comments by Jim Kyte 
• Professor C


environment (with a focus on “Here Comes Honey Boo Boo”/“Toddlers and Tiaras”). 


Med  sia tories for the month of September includ


MacDonald regarding experiential learning and his direction for the Co
 
September 26 – The Ottawa Citizen featured a 
to ask culinary students to test heritage recip
 
September 27 – The Kemptville EMC reported on a firefighter recr
included alumnus Geoff LeGoueff. 
 
 








 


   
 
 
MEETING NUMBER  FOUR HUNDRED AND  SEVENTY  SIX OF  THE  BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF 
ALGONQUIN COLLEGE WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY NOVEMBER 12, 2012, BEGINNING AT 5:00 
P.M. IN THE ROSSER BOARDROOM, C539, WOODROFFE CAMPUS 


 
AGENDA 


Item   
 


Tab # 


1.  Conflict of Interest Declaration 
 


 


2.  Approval of Previous Minutes of October 9, 2012 
 


 


3.  Business Arising 
 


 


4.  Decision Items & Reports 
 


 


  4.1  Program Approvals: 
  a.  Illustration and Concept Art  
  b.   Diagnostic Medical Ultrasound 
  c.  Medical Device Reprocessing 
  d.   Construction Techniques 
     


 
2 
3 
4 
5 
 


  4.2   2nd Quarter Financial Review 
 


6 


  4.3  2nd Quarter Business Plan Update  7 


  4.4  Report of the Executive Committee 
 


 


  4.5  Report of the Audit Committee 
 


 


  4.6   Report of the Governance Committee 
  a.  Board Reappointments for Fall 2013 
 


 
8 


  4.7   Ontario Special Bursaries Update  9 


6.  Report of the Chair 
 


 


7.  Report of the President 
 


 


8.  Management Summary Report 
 


10 


9.  Other Business  
 


 


10.  In Camera   
 








                                   BOARD OF GOVERNORS  


DRAFT 


MINUTES OF MEETING NUMBER FOUR HUNDRED AND SEVENTY FIVE OF THE BOARD 
OF GOVERNORS OF ALGONQUIN COLLEGE WHICH WAS HELD ON TUESDAY OCTOBER 
9, 2012, AT 5:00 P.M. IN THE STAFF DINING LOUNGE, WOODROFFE CAMPUS 


Present James McIntosh, Chair 
Denise Amyot 
Fred Blackstein 
Nancy Cheng 
Lynne Clark 
Michael Dunlop  
Barbara Farber 
Kathyrn Leroux  
Kyrylo Kasyanenko 
Kent MacDonald, President 
Shawn McBride 
Andrew Pridham 
Mark Sutcliffe  
 


Regrets 
 


Jeanine Chiasson  
Louis Lamontagne 
Doug Orendorff  
John Owens 
 


Vice 
Presidents:
 
 
 
Recording 
Secretary 


Gerry Barker, Human Resources 
Claude Brulé, Academic 
Duane McNair, Administration  
Laura Stanbra, Student Services 
 
Anna Cobus 


Observers Jo-Ann Aubut, Acting Dean, Academic Development 
Barbara Foulds, Acting Dean, Faculty of Health, Public Safety & Community Studies 
Leslie Kopf-Johnson, Professor, Early Childhood Education 
Diane McCutcheon, Acting Director, Labour Relations 
Russ Mills, Dean, Faculty of Arts, Media & Design 
Kathryn Moore, Registrar 
Misheck Mwaba, Chair, Mechanical & Transportation Technology 
Doug Ouderkirk, Executive Director, Academic Operations & Planning 
Carlos Pereira, Professor, Early Childhood Education 
Joe Ranieri, Acting Director, Business Development 
Brenda Rothwell, Executive Director, Algonquin College Foundation 
Mike Sparling, Director, Information, Institutional Research & Technology Services 
Catherine Sidorenko, Chair, Community Studies 
Jack Wilson, Professor, Police & Public Safety Institute 
 
 


The Chair called the meeting to order and welcomed Lisa Lamarre to the meeting.  The 
President and Vice President, Academic, introduced Ms. Lamarre and announced that she 
recently received a 2012 Prime Minister's Award for Excellence in Early Childhood Education for 
her dedication to action, advancement and the success of the students and families at the 
Algonquin College Early Learning Centre.  Ms. Lamarre spoke briefly to her experience in 
receiving the award and the Board offered its congratulations on her special achievement.   


The Chair introduced Nancy Cheng and welcomed her to her first meeting as a member of the 
Board of Governors.  Ms. Cheng spoke briefly to her background and expressed enthusiasm in 
becoming familiarized with and supporting the work of the College.   


 







B.G. #475    October 9, 2012 
Page 2 


 
12-44  CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 


Governor Pridham declared a conflict of interest with respect to the program approval for 
Manufacturing Engineering Technician as a result of his position in the Faculty of Technology 
and Trades and that he would be presenting the program for Board approval later in the 
meeting.     


 
 
12-45 APPROVAL OF THE PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
RESOLUTION 
 
MOVED & SECONDED – Farber & Amyot 
 
That the minutes of June 11, 2012, be approved as presented. 
 
 
 
12-46 BUSINESS ARISING 
 
The Chair observed that information has not yet been received regarding the Ontario Special 
Bursaries Program and that Management will provide an update to the Board once details are 
available.   
 
 
 
12-47 DECISION ITEMS & REPORTS 
 


PROGRAM PROPOSAL:  BACHELOR OF EARLY LEARNING & COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 


 
Barbara Foulds presented a proposal to offer a four year degree program entitled Bachelor of 
Early Learning and Community Development (BELCD) which is designed to prepare students 
for opportunities in the early learning field within both the educational and the community 
context. By integrating theory and practice, students attain the skills to design, develop, deliver, 
coordinate and administrate early learning programs for young children and families.  
Employment may be found in the licensed early learning and care sector, community health 
agencies, the educational system, or with agencies engaged in research on early learning. The 
degree provides the foundation for further study at the post-graduate level or in Bachelor of 
Education programs. The implementation of the program reflects the strategic directions of the 
College including the commitment to digital learning with 26% online, alternative delivery, 
leveraging relationships with business and industry with field and work placement, and meeting 
the needs of students and the community. The Strategic Programs and Services Planning 
Project Report identified the degree program as one of the actions required to enhance the 
Early Childhood Education (ECE) Ontario College Diploma program. 







B.G. #475    October 9, 2012 
Page 3 


 
Questions/Comments: 


 Governor Leroux:  Do we anticipate losses in our ECE program as a result of this degree 
program?  No.  The Early Childhood Education diploma program has been oversubscribed 
for years and many students continue on to university following completion of that program.  
In addition, many of the students entering the ECE program do not have the requirements to 
begin in a degree program.  It is not expected to have any significant impact.   


 Governor Amyot:  How does the cost of this program compare to that of a four year 
university degree?  The cost is marginally below that of a university degree.   


 Governor Dunlop:  Is this duplicative of what can be obtained at university?  No, this is a 
unique program.  There are child studies programs at universities but none such as this. 


 Governor Kasyanenko:  Has forecasting been projected for years three and four for the 
bridge between the diploma program degree programs.  No, this costing is done separately 
as a practice.  The bridging option will assist with attrition, however, causing a positive 
impact.   


 Governor McBride:  What is the tuition for the two year program and will this impact the 
bridging? The difference is approximately $1K per term for the two years, but students are 
then required to complete the three bridging courses at an added cost.      


RESOLUTION 


MOVED & SECONDED – Leroux & Amyot 


That the Board of Governors approve the Bachelor of Early Learning and Community 
Development degree program effective Fall 2014 and submit an application for  Ministerial 
Consent to the Postsecondary Education Quality Assessment Board and approval for funding 
from the Ministry of Training, Colleges and Universities. 


CARRIED 


 


PROGRAM PROPOSAL:  MANUFACTURING ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGY 


Andrew Pridham and Mischek Mwaba presented a proposal to offer a Manufacturing 
Engineering Technician (MET) Ontario College Diploma program which prepares students for 
entry into the manufacturing engineering industry. It is offered over two years and students 
prepare for an extensive variety of dynamic technical positions requiring strong, mechanically-
oriented backgrounds within the manufacturing industry. In a combination of classroom and lab-
based environments, students develop knowledge and skills essential to succeed in the 
multifaceted, fast-paced field of manufacturing engineering.  Graduates of the program may find 
employment in areas such as research and development, defence, aerospace, medical device 
manufacturing, and consumer and industrial product industries.  The implementation of the 
program reflects the strategic directions of the College including responding to an SPSP 







B.G. #475    October 9, 2012 
Page 4 


 
recommendation to revise an existing program, the commitment to digital learning with 24% 
online, alternative delivery, leveraging relationships with business and industry with a mandatory 
field placement, and meeting the needs of students and the community.  


Questions/Comments: 


 Governor Leroux:  Is the current program two years in duration and will existing students 
move into the new program?  There will be an overlap but there is a plan to phase out and 
graduate students in the existing program. 


 Governor Blackstein:  What is the status of employment experience for graduates from the 
Loyalist program?  The demand is lower.  However, with the diversity in this region and the 
local support from industry, it is not a concern. 


 Governor Blackstein:  Why is English a deciding factor if the number of applications exceeds 
the available space in the program?  It would seem that mathematics or another technical 
subject may be a better indicator.  English is a requirement for all Ontario college 
credentials.  However, the question was taken under advisement for further investigation, 
consultation with the Advisory Committee, and to ensure provincial standards are met. 


 Governor Leroux:  What is our standard target for showing positive net contribution in a 
program?  The overall standard is 25% contribution after approximately 5 years due to the 
funding lag.   


 The Chair observed that the phased out program will continue to generate revenue which is 
not taken into account into the costing.  The President added that the programs are brought 
forward in a consistent format for comparative purposes, and that the College will continue 
to receive lag year funding from the phased out program which will provide a continued 
revenue stream without associated costs.   


RESOLUTION 


MOVED & SECONDED – Blackstein & Sutcliffe 


That the Board of Governors approve the Manufacturing Engineering Technician Ontario 
College Diploma program effective Fall 2013 and seek validation of the program title and 
outcomes from the Credentials Validation Service and approval for funding from the Ministry of 
Training, Colleges and Universities. 


CARRIED 


1 Abstention – Pridham 


BANKING OFFICERS 


RESOLUTION 


MOVED AND SECONDED – Dunlop and Cheng 







B.G. #475    October 9, 2012 
Page 5 


 
That for banking purposes, the following are the officers of Algonquin College of Applied Arts 
and Technology, October 9, 2012: 


THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF ALGONQUIN COLLEGE OF APPLIED ARTS AND 
TECHNOLOGY  


Position Current Incumbent 
Chair  James McIntosh 
Vice Chair Doug Orendorff 
Secretary Kent MacDonald 
Treasurer Duane McNair 
 


Senior Officials of the College  
 
Position      Current Incumbent 
President      Kent MacDonald 
Vice President, Academic     Claude Brulé 
Vice President, Administration   Duane McNair 
Vice President, Human Resources   Gerry Barker 
Vice President, Student Services   Laura Stanbra 
Director, Finance and Administrative Services  Cathy Dempsey 
Manager, Financial Services     Sally Clarke 
               


CARRIED 


 


REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 


The Executive Committee met on August 2nd and authorized the College to enter into 
discussions with Siemens Canada for a second Energy Savings Contract as a result of an RFP 
process.  The Board will receive a briefing at the December meeting.  The 2012/13 performance 
criteria for the President was also approved at the meeting.   


The Committee met on September 4th and interviewed two candidates for appointment to the 
Board of Governors.  A decision was taken to appoint new Governor Nancy Cheng.   


The format of the September Retreat also discussed at the September 4th meeting.  


 


12-48 REPORT OF THE CHAIR 


The Chair reported the following: 


 The draft calendar of agenda items was sent to Governors which included a number of 
topics arising from the September retreat.  Also noted was the start of the December 10th 
meeting at 4:00 p.m. to allow sufficient time before the Board’s annual Christmas dinner. 







B.G. #475    October 9, 2012 
Page 6 


 
The cancellation of the January 14th board meeting was also noted as well as the addition of 
a day-long retreat prior the regular board meeting on February 11, 2013.   


 A decision was taken to delay the Board meeting in Pembroke to the spring as a result of 
the delay in completion of the campus.  Governor Blackstein will speak to this further under 
other business.   


 Any requests to staff are to be directed to the Chair in order to ensure he is aware of the 
type and volume of requests from Governors. 


 The Fall Convocation ceremonies will be held on November 7th at the National Arts Centre 
beginning at 2:00 and 6:30 p.m.  Governors received an invitation asking for Board 
representatives to bring greetings to the graduates.  Those Governors available to attend 
were asked to notify the Board office as soon as possible.   


 On the table was a copy of the Code of Ethical Conduct and Governors agreement, as well 
as a copy of Minister’s Binding Policy Directive on Conflict of Interest.  Governors were 
asked to leave a signed copy of the agreement on the table before leaving and to review the 
binding policy directive. 


 Bill Johnson has been approached to determine his willingness to record his presentation on 
the History and Mandate of Colleges in a video format for future Governors.   


 Copies of the remittance declaration from the financial officers of the College were on the 
table confirming that as of June 30th, all applicable income tax source deductions and 
remittances were submitted in accordance with CRA and Ministry of Revenue requirements.   


 


12-49  REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT 


The President reported the following: 


 Governors were invited to attend the October 18th opening of the Robert C. Gillett Student 
Commons which has become a gathering place for the students.   


 On October 2nd, through a collective effort under the leadership of Vice President Laura 
Stanbra, the College launched its commitment to the mental health of its students, as well 
as staff and faculty.  The College is working with the Canadian Mental Health Association to 
better prepare staff and faculty to become early interveners for those experiencing mental 
health difficulties.  A training site was launched (http://icopeu.org/Algonquin/home.html) 
which is a mental health resource for Algonquin College students, offered in partnership 
between the Algonquin Students’ Association and Student Support Services.  Steven Page, 
former lead singer of the Bare Naked Ladies, kicked off the event with a presentation and 
concert. 


 The College’s United Way campaign was launched on October 5th with the annual Air Band 
Competition which was held in the Student Commons Theatre.  The event reflects our staff 
and faculty’s commitment to help those in our community as well as being a good 
demonstration of the tremendous spirit of Algonquin’s employees.    


 The 6th annual Corporate and Community Social Responsibility Conference will take place 
on November 6th.  Governors were invited to attend the conference and/or gala event and 
were asked to notify the Board Office should they wish to attend.   


 The Strategic Mandate Agreement has been submitted and will be evaluated by an 
independent evaluation team led by the Harvey Weingarten of the Higher Education Council 
of Ontario.  The President is scheduled to meet Mr. Weingarten. 


 Staff and faculty did an excellent job in the fall term start up.  All facilities and classrooms 
are operating with the exception of the Pembroke Campus which is nearing completion.  
There was an unexpected critical technology outage during which time the IT team worked 



http://icopeu.org/Algonquin/home.html





B.G. #475    October 9, 2012 
Page 7 


 
diligently with internet service provider Rogers.  The President recognized the hard work of 
faculty and staff in getting the College ready for learning.   


 Last winter the traffic on network was 300 mb.  At the start of the fall term, traffic increased 
to 1GB which represents 2.5 times as much demand on the network than less than a year 
ago.  


 Since the College converted to BlackBoard mobile access in the spring, 75% of all students 
are now accessing BlackBoard through mobile devices rather than a browser, a clear 
indicator that this is serving the needs of students.  


 
12-50 MANAGEMENT SUMMARY REPORT 
 
The Chair observed that the format of the Management Summary report has changed which will 
allow the report to be easier to compile.  Governors were asked if they had any comments on 
the change; no comments were made. 
 
Questions/Comments: 
 
 Governor Dunlop: Is the campus 100% wireless available?  This room did not have access 


when we first began meeting.  The way the College is constructed in some areas does 
cause some deficiencies which are constantly being addressed as this is so critical to the 
digital College. 


 Governor Leroux:  Well done on the admission statistics.  Is the Registrar’s Office entirely 
responsible for the increase and do we have an idea of what is driving the majority of it?  
The types of programming have assisted as well as our use of social media in terms of 
marketing and communication.  The follow up efforts between application and registration 
are also a factor. It is very much a team effort.    


 Governor McBride noted that from a faculty perspective, there are some rooms which still 
don’t have useable wireless network access including T117 and T119, so it is important to 
understand that the College is still working towards 100% wireless availability.   


 
The Management Summary report for October, 2012 was received and is available online at 
www.algonquincollege.com/board.  
 
 
12-51 OTHER BUSINESS 
 
APPOINTMENT OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER 
 
The Chair of the Governance Committee tabled a motion to appoint new Governor Cheng to the  
Audit Committee effective immediately so that she can join its meeting on November 19th. 
 
RESOLUTION 
 
MOVED & SECONDED – Amyot & Blackstein 
 
That Nancy Cheng be appointed to the Audit Committee effectively immediately. 
  


CARRIED 
 



http://www.algonquincollege.com/board





B.G. #475    October 9, 2012 
Page 8 


 
1 Abstention – Cheng 


 
PEMBROKE CAMPUS UPDATE 
 
Governor Blackstein provided an update on the status on the progress of construction at the 
new Pembroke Campus.  He indicated that the project is huge for the small community and 
aside from some trades shortages and weather issues, the building is beautiful and enrolment is 
exceeding projections.  As a result of the delay in completion of construction, Governor 
Blackstein indicated that it is best that Board wait to visit the campus until such time as it is 
ready for a perfect first impression.   
 
He also noted that the new campus address has just been approved by City Council:  1 College 
Way.  The expected move in date is just prior to the 1st of November and a bus will be arranged 
to take members of the Board and College Community to Pembroke for the opening event 
which is yet to be scheduled.   
 
The President added that once this building is complete, it will provide real leverage to the 
Community in terms of the economic development in that region.  Claude Brule recognized the 
work of Karen Davies and the Pembroke Team in ensuring learning outcomes are being met 
during the transition that thanked them for their ability to adapt as plans changed.  The Chair 
concluded that the Board appreciates the work of the staff who have been working through all of 
the efforts. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:11 p.m. and Governors moved in 
camera. 
 
                    
James McIntosh, Chair     Anna Cobus, Recording Secretary 








 


     
PRESENTATION TO BOARD OF GOVERNORS 


 
 Program Title: Illustration and Concept Art 
 Credential:   Ontario College Diploma 
 Program Length: One Year (Non-semestered Diploma Program) 
 School:   Media and Design  
 Dean:   Russell Mills 
 Proposed Start Date: Fall 2013 
 
 
PURPOSE:    
 
The Illustration and Concept Art program prepares graduates for entry into the traditional field of 
illustration and the emerging field of concept art. Students develop industry-standard technical 
skills in digital and traditional media, as well as strong conceptual and creative skills. Graduates 
of this program may find employment in the print/editorial, advertising/commercial, and technical 
illustration industries.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Program recommendations from the Strategic Programs and Services Planning Committee 
included phasing out the one-year graduate certificate program in Professional Illustration 
because of weak applicant demand from qualified applicants. Students graduating from the 
General Arts and Science one-year Introduction to Concept Art certificate program did not meet 
the admission requirements for the graduate certificate program in Professional Illustration.  
Without that feeder program, registrations were too low to sustain it. The final intake was January 
2011. 
 
The Ontario College Diploma in Illustration and Concept Art is a possible next step for students 
in General Arts and Science programs in Design Studies, Introduction to Concept Art, 
Introduction to Fine Art, and Pre-Animation and Illustration.  
 
The Illustration and Concept Art program is a non-semestered diploma program (NSDP). 
Students will complete the program in 12 months. Students who begin in a General Arts and 
Science certificate program will complete both the Ontario College Certificate program and the 
Ontario College Diploma program in two years.  
 
CONSIDERATIONS 
 
(i) Evidence of Need:   
 In February 2011, Hanover Research conducted a Labour Market analysis for the two-year 


diploma program in Illustration and Concept Art.  The study findings highlighted that the 
Concept Art/Illustration industry does not appear to be well-defined in Canada, based on a 
lack of information about the specific field as an occupation, and that data on the labour 


Illustration and Concept Art, OCD -1- November 12, 2012
 







 


Illustration and Concept Art, OCD -2- November 12, 2012
 


market for this occupation in Canada should not be considered definitive. The study 
reported that the market for workers in the Illustration and Concept Art field is growing in 
the United States. There is a particular demand for workers in these fields in California, 
especially in the cities of Los Angeles and San Francisco. In Canada, it appears that the 
most welcoming markets for graduates of the program are the cities of Toronto, Montreal, 
and Vancouver with an average employment outlook in these regions over the next few 
years. The Program Advisory Committee, comprised of local illustrators and concept artists, 
fully supports the need for this program. 


   
(ii)  Student Interest:   
 Comparable programs across the province show consistent applications and high 


enrolment.  For the B.A.A. (Illustration) program at Seneca College, there are six applicants 
for every available seat in the program. Algonquin’s General Arts and Science Pre-
Animation and Illustration program which is expected to be a feeder program, has for the 
last several years received ~190 applications per year. 


 
(iii) Staffing:  
 The program will be taught and coordinated by part-time staff in the first year.  A full-time 


professor/coordinator hire is projected for the second year of delivery, assuming sufficient 
enrolment.  


 
(iv) Admissions Requirements 
 Program Eligibility:  


• English, Grade 12 (ENG4C or equivalent).  
• Submit a portfolio of 10-15 samples of best work. A fee of $30 (subject to change) will 


be charged for portfolio assessment. An additional layout/design test required upon 
receipt of your application. 


   
(v) Advisory Committee Support:   
 The Program Advisory Committee offered their motion of support on February 2, 2012. 
 
(vi)  Strategic Alignment:   
 The implementation of this program reflects the strategic directions of the College including 


the commitment to digital learning and alternative delivery with 40% online and a 
compressed program delivery, experiential learning working directly with publishers, mobile 
and web game companies, and studio and art directors that leverage our relationships with 
business and industry, and meeting the needs of students and the community. The 
Professional Illustration, OCGC program was identified as a “Phase Out” in the Strategic 
Programs and Services Planning Project Final Report and a Concept Art program identified 
as a “Related to Existing New Opportunity” 


  
Appendix 1: Program of Study 
Appendix 2: Cash Flow Analysis 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the Board of Governors approve the Illustration and Concept Art Ontario College Diploma 
program effective Fall 2013 and seek validation of the program title and outcomes from the 
Credentials Validation Service and approval for funding from the Ministry of Training, Colleges 
and Universities. 
  







 


Illustration and Concept Art, OCD -3- November 12, 2012
 


Appendix 1 – Program of Study  
 


LEVEL 1  - 15 weeks 


 
COURSE 
NUMBER 


COURSE 
TITLE 


Hours  


Th
eo


ry
  


La
b 


Fi
el


d 
/ C


lin
ic


al
 


To
ta


l H
ou


rs
 


In
 c


la
ss


 


O
nl


in
e 


In
 c


la
ss


 


O
nl


in
e 


ART1001 Life Drawing I 30  30   60 


ART1002 Digital Visual Dynamics  30  30  60 


ART1003 Environment & Asset Building Art I 15  30 15  60 


ART1004 Interpretive Illustration I 15  30 15  60 


ART1005 Interactive Media Art I 15  30 15  60 


DSN2001 History of Design  45    45 


ENL1813M Communications I  45    45 


 TOTAL LEVEL HOURS 75 120 120 75  390 


 
LEVEL 2 – 15 weeks 


 
COURSE 
NUMBER 


COURSE 
TITLE 


Hours  


Th
eo


ry
  


La
b 


Fi
el


d 
/ C


lin
ic


al
 


To
ta


l H
ou


rs
 


In
 c


la
ss


 


O
nl


in
e 


In
 c


la
ss


 


O
nl


in
e 


ART2009 Life Drawing II 30  30   60 


ART2010 Graphic Narratives I 15 15 30   60 


ART2011 Environment & Asset Building Art II 15  30 15  60 


ART2012 Interpretive Illustration II 15 15 30   60 


ART2013 Interactive Media Art II 15 15 30   60 


GEDxxxx General Education Elective  45    45 


ENL2026 Writing for Graphic Narratives 30 15    45 


 TOTAL LEVEL HOURS 120 105 150 15  390 







 


Illustration and Concept Art, OCD -4- November 12, 2012


     
 


LEVEL 3 – 15 weeks 


 
COURSE 
NUMBER 


COURSE 
TITLE 


Hours  


Th
eo


ry
  


La
b 


Fi
el


d 
/ C


lin
ic


al
 


To
ta


l H
ou


rs
 


In
 c


la
ss


 


O
nl


in
e 


In
 c


la
ss


 


O
nl


in
e 


ART3001 Life Drawing III 15  45   60 


ART3002 Graphic Narratives II 15 15 30   60 


ART3003 Marketing and Merchandising 
Illustration 15 15 15 15  60 


ART3004 Professional Transitions 15 15 15 15  60 


ART3005 Interactive Media Art III 15 15 30   60 


GEDxxxx General Education Elective  45    45 


ART3006 Light and Colour 15 15 15   45 


 TOTAL LEVEL HOURS 90 120 150 30  390 


 
.       


1170 hours    Diploma Program Total Hours:   
 


 








ILLUSTRATION AND CONCEPT ART
NSDP
Cash Flow Analysis


TOTAL ENROLMENT 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
Year 1** 65 90 90 90 90 90


Tuition Fee per Semester 1,735 1,785 1,835 1,885 1,935 1,985


REVENUE
Fees 112,775 160,650 165,150 169,650 174,150 178,650
Grant* 62,949 150,109 237,269 261,480


Total Revenue 112,775 160,650 228,099 319,759 411,419 440,130


EXPENSES
FT Academic + Fringe (22.46%) 62,167 94,857 98,072 101,399 104,843
Temp Acad +  Fringe (9%) 85,382 85,270 85,270 85,270 85,270 85,270
FT Supp + Fringe (27.07%)
Temp Supp + Fringe (10%)


Operating 8,000 8,400 8,820 9,261 9,724 10,210
Total Expenses 93,382 155,837 188,947 192,603 196,393 200,323


 CONTRIBUTION BEFORE 19,393 4,813 39,152 127,156 215,026 239,807


INVESTMENTS
Equipment 13,500 0 10,000 0 10,000 0
Course Development 30,000 0 0 0 0 0
Renovations 0 0 0 0 0 0Renovations 0 0 0 0 0 0


Total Capital 43,500 0 10,000 0 10,000 0


NET CONTRIBUTION -24,107 4,813 29,152 127,156 205,026 239,807


% -21.38% 3.00% 12.78% 39.77% 49.83% 54.49%


* Grant Value $ 4,358 
Program Weight 1.0, Funding Unit 2.0 (Estimate)
FT academic calculated at step 10, 8/12's of the annual salary in the year of hire
A number of variables are considered when calculating tuition and expenses; these are changed based on government
direction as required
Note:


The purpose of the Cash Flow Analysis for a new program is to capture the direct revenues and expenses associated


with the program. The resulting contribution indicates the funds the program will generate to help support


the current operations of the Academic Area. Therefore, pre-existing costs such as department overheads 


and space costs are not included in the cash flow. These costs are captured in the annual Program Costing exercise.


**Enrolment Detail
Level 01 35 35 35 35 35 35
Level 02 30 30 30 30 30 30
Level 03 25 25 25 25 25


65 90 90 90 90 90





		 Cash Flow






 


Diagnostic Medical Ultrasonography, OCGC -1- November 12, 2012 


     
 


PRESENTATION TO BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
 


 Program Title:   Diagnostic Medical Ultrasonography 
 Credential:   Ontario College Graduate Certificate  
 Program Length:  16 months 
 School:   Health and Community Studies 
 Dean:   Barbara Foulds 
 Proposed Start Date:  Fall 2013 
 
 
PURPOSE 
This Ontario College Graduate Certificate program prepares graduates for a career in the field of 
Diagnostic Medical Ultrasonography. Diagnostic medical sonographers capture and analyze a 
variety of complex sonographic images to assist physicians in the diagnosis and management of 
multiple system disorders.  
 
Graduates may find employment in community and teaching hospitals, medical clinics, education 
and research settings and in private industry. Algonquin College has initiated the accreditation 
process with the Canadian Medical Association Conjoint Accreditation Services. Graduation from 
an accredited program is required for eligibility to write the national certification exams. Upon 
successful completion of these exams, students will be credentialed as a Canadian Generalist 
Sonographer or American Registered Diagnostic Medical Sonographer. Graduates have the 
opportunity to become a member of several professional diagnostic ultrasound organizations 
such as the Canadian Association of Registered Diagnostic Ultrasound Professionals and the 
Canadian Society of Diagnostic Medical Sonographers. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In the past, most ultrasonography technologists were trained as x-ray technicians. There are six 
ultrasonography college programs currently available in Ontario. College programs can be 
grouped into two types: graduate certificate programs that range from 1 to 1.5 years in length, 
and direct-entry advanced diploma and degree programs which are 3 to 4 years in duration. Most 
of the colleges offering this type of training are located in southwestern Ontario. At this time, 
postsecondary educational programs of this nature are not available east of Toronto. 
 
Program delivery is proposed over four terms in a variety of course formats including classroom, 
lab, online and clinical. It is anticipated that the Simulation Centre for Health Studies will be utilized 
during evenings and weekends. In Levels 03 and 04, students will complete clinical placements in 
hospitals and private labs. The curriculum focuses on adding another dimension of healthcare to 
the existing knowledge of various health professionals. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS 
 
(i) Evidence of Need 


A labour market analysis was completed by Axion Inc. in February 2012. The findings 


 







 


Diagnostic Medical Ultrasonography, OCGC -2- November 12, 2012 
 


indicated that there appeared to be considerable evidence to suggest a severe shortage of 
medical diagnostic ultrasonography technologists in the near future in Ontario, the rest of 
Canada, and the United States. Changing demographics, significant improvements in 
technology, efficiency requirements, and safety concerns about alternative technologies, 
are some of the principal reasons responsible for the future growth of this profession. 
 


 (ii)  Student Interest 
As of March 13, 2012, the Allied Health Department fielded 18 calls requesting information 
regarding the start date for ultrasonography and program requirements. Forty-four Medical 
Radiation Technology (MRT) students were electronically surveyed as to their interest in a 
graduate certificate program in Diagnostic Medical Ultrasonography upon completion of the 
MRT program. The 50 % response rate indicated that 58% of students would enrol in a 
Graduate Certificate Program in Diagnostic Medical Ultrasonography immediately upon 
graduation and 62% within 3-5 years of graduation. 


 
(iii) Staffing  


In the first year of the program, staffing costs will be attributed to part-time faculty. 
Consideration will be given to a full-time hire once the program is stable. 
 


(iv) Admissions Requirements 
 Program Eligibility:  
 An Ontario College Diploma, Advanced Diploma, or Degree in the following: 


 Medical Radiation Technology 
 Magnetic Resonance Imaging Technology 
 Nuclear Medicine Imaging Technology  
 Nursing 
 Medical Radiation Therapy  
 Paramedic 
 Respiratory Therapy  


    or equivalent with departmental approval. 
   
(v) Advisory Committee Support 


On June 13, 2012 the Medical Radiation Technology Advisory Committee passed a motion 
stating that they reviewed the curriculum as presented for the Diagnostic Medical 
Ultrasonography Ontario College Graduate Certificate program and supported the need for 
this program in the community, recommending it for approval to the President’s Executive 
Committee, and to the Board of Governors. The one absent Committee member 
subsequently provided support by email on June 19, 2012. 


 
(vi)   Strategic Alignment  


The implementation of this program reflects the strategic directions of the College including 
the commitment to digital learning with 27% online for non-clinical/lab courses, leveraging 
of our relationships with business and industry with 1200 hours of clinical placement, and 
meeting the needs of students and the community. This program was identified as a new 
opportunity in the Strategic Programs and Services Planning Final Report. 


 
Appendix 1: Program of Study 
Appendix 2: Cash Flow Analysis  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the Board of Governors approve the Diagnostic Medical Ultrasonography Ontario College 
Graduate Certificate program effective Fall 2013 and seek validation of the program title and 
outcomes from the Credentials Validation Service and approval for funding from the Ministry of 







 


Diagnostic Medical Ultrasonography, OCGC -3- November 12, 2012 
 


Training, Colleges and Universities. 







 


Diagnostic Medical Ultrasonography, OCGC -4- November 12, 2012 
 


Appendix 1:  Program of Study - Diagnostic Medical Ultrasonography 
 
 


LEVEL 1 – 15 Weeks 
 


 
COURSE 
NUMBER 


COURSE 
TITLE 


Hours  


Th
eo


ry
  


La
b 


Fi
el


d 
/ C


lin
ic


al
 


To
ta


l H
ou


rs
 


In
 c


la
ss


 


O
nl


in
e 


In
 c


la
ss


 


O
nl


in
e 


IMG1000 Professional Practice in Sonography 30 30    60 


IMG1001 Cross-Sectional Anatomy for Sonography 15 15    30 


IMG1002 Sonography Physics and Instrumentation I 30 15    45 


IMG1003 Abdominal and Pelvic Sonography 45 15    60 


IMG1004 Obstetrical and Gynecological Sonography I 45 15    60 


IMG1005 Sonography of Superficial Structures 30 15    45 


IMG1006 Sonography Skills Laboratory I   90   90 


 TOTAL LEVEL HOURS 195 105 90   390 


 
LEVEL 2 – 15 Weeks 


 


 
COURSE 
NUMBER 


COURSE 
TITLE 


Hours  


Th
eo


ry
  


La
b 


Fi
el


d 
/ C


lin
ic


al
 


To
ta


l H
ou


rs
 


In
 c


la
ss


 


O
nl


in
e 


In
 c


la
ss


 


O
nl


in
e 


IMG1007 Sonography Physics and Instrumentation II 45 15    60 


IMG1008 Sonographic Pathology of the Abdomen and 
Pelvis 60     60 


IMG1009 Obstetrical and Gynecological Sonography II 45 15    60 


IMG1010 Vascular Sonography 45     45 


IMG1011 Musculoskeletal Sonography 15 15    30 


IMG1012 Sonography Skills Laboratory II   90   90 


 TOTAL LEVEL HOURS 210 45 90   345 
 
 
 


 







 


Diagnostic Medical Ultrasonography, OCGC -5- November 12, 2012 


 
LEVEL 3 – 15 Weeks 


 


 
COURSE 
NUMBER 


COURSE 
TITLE 


Hours  


Th
eo


ry
  


La
b 


Fi
el


d 
/ C


lin
ic


al
 


To
ta


l H
ou


rs
 


In
 c


la
ss


 


O
nl


in
e 


In
 c


la
ss


 


O
nl


in
e 


IMG1013 Clinical Practicum I     600  


 


 
LEVEL 4 – 15 Weeks 


 


 
COURSE 
NUMBER 


COURSE 
TITLE 


Hours  


Th
eo


ry
  


La
b 


Fi
el


d 
/ C


lin
ic


al
 


To
ta


l H
ou


rs
 


In
 c


la
ss


 


O
nl


in
e 


In
 c


la
ss


 


O
nl


in
e 


IMG1014 Clinical Practicum II     600  


 
 
Hybrid Hours:      Program Total Hours:   150/555  = 27% 1935 


 
 


 








Renovations 0 0 0 0 0 0


DIAGNOSTIC MEDICAL ULTRASONOGRAPHY
Ontario College Graduate Certificate
Cash Flow Analysis


TOTAL ENROLMENT 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
Year 1** 39 74 74 74 74 74


Tuition Fee per Semester 2,100 2,150 2,200 2,250 2,300 2,350


REVENUE
Fees 81,900 159,100 162,800 166,500 170,200 173,900
Grant* 46,740 135,425 224,110 266,056


Total Revenue 81,900 159,100 209,540 301,925 394,310 439,956


EXPENSES
FT Academic + Fringe (22.46%) 62,167 94,857 98,072 101,399 104,843
Temp Acad +  Fringe (9%) 102,864 58,426 58,426 58,426 58,426 58,426
FT Supp + Fringe (27.07%)
Temp Supp + Fringe (10%)


Operating 11,118 81,103 82,270 83,496 84,783 86,135
Total Expenses 113,982 201,696 235,553 239,994 244,608 249,404


CONTRIBUTION BEFORE -32,082 -42,596 -26,013 61,931 149,702 190,552


INVESTMENTS
Equipment 82,728 0 0 0 0 0
Course Development 70,000 0 0 0 0 0
Renovations 0 0 0 0 0 0


Total Capital 152,728 0 0 0 0 0


NET CONTRIBUTION -184,810 -42,596 -26,013 61,931 149,702 190,552


% -225.65% -26.77% -12.41% 20.51% 37.97% 43.31%


* Grant Value $ 4,358 
Program Weight 2.2, Funding Unit 1.5 (Based on similar programs)
FT academic calculated at step 10, 8/12's of the annual salary in the year of hire
A number of variables are considered when calculating tuition and expenses; these are changed based on government 
direction as required


Note:


The purpose of the Cash Flow Analysis for a new program is to capture the direct revenues and expenses associated


with the program. The resulting contribution indicates the funds the program will generate to help support


the current operations of the Academic Area. Therefore, pre-existing costs such as department overheads 


and space costs are not included in the cash flow. These costs are captured in the annual Program Costing exercise.


**Enrolment Detail
Level 01 20 20 20 20 20 20
Level 02 19 19 19 19 19 19
Level 03 18 18 18 18 18
Level 04 17 17 17 17 17


39 74 74 74 74 74





		 Cash Flow






 


Medical Device Reprocessing, OCC -1- November 12, 2012 
 


 
    PRESENTATION TO BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
 
 Program Title:   Medical Device Reprocessing  
 Credential:   Ontario College Certificate  
 Program Length:  One Year  
 School:   Health and Community Studies  
 Dean:   Barbara Foulds 
 Proposed Start Date:   Spring 2013 
 
 
PURPOSE 
 
The one-year Medical Device Reprocessing (MDR) Ontario College Certificate program prepares 
students to apply principles of infection prevention and proper handling in the decontamination, 
inspection, assembly, sterilization and storage of reusable patient care equipment and 
instrumentation in healthcare settings. This unique program offers a combination of theory, lab 
practice, simulation and clinical experience. 
  
Graduates may seek employment opportunities as medical device reprocessing workers in 
healthcare facilities such as hospital medical device reprocessing departments, public and 
private endoscopic clinics, dental clinics and surgi-centres.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Industry standards in the healthcare specialty of medical device reprocessing are changing 
rapidly. With the advent of the new Canadian Certification for Medical Device Reprocessing 
Technicians (Canadian Standards Association), the educational requirements for technicians 
have expanded. New regulations require MDR technicians to re-certify every five years. Public 
health issues brought to media attention for endoscope reprocessing are driving the need for 
more education. The proposed program is timely, reflective of the advances in MDR, and is 
designed to graduate confident healthcare professionals. The program will be delivered using 
existing facilities and equipment housed in the Simulation Centre for Health Studies and 
complemented with a 2-week clinical placement in a hospital setting.  
 
CONSIDERATIONS 
 
(i) Evidence of Need  
 Nationally, the occupational category of “Assisting Occupations in Support of Health 


Services,” including medical device reprocessing technicians, has the highest level of 
projected employment among the categories examined in the Hanover Market Analysis. 
The projected growth is 14% through 2020 with a sustained surplus of job openings 
through 2020. Based on anecdotal information from part-time program offerings, Ontario 
MDR programs, enrollment is dependent on the regional job opportunities and the ability to 
acquire student clinical placements. In the Ottawa region approximately 40 to 50 jobs are 
filled in this occupation annually. As the program matures, the College will offer 
recertification options for Medical Device Reprocessing employees.    







 


Medical Device Reprocessing, OCC -2- November 12, 2012 
 


   
(ii) Student Interest  
 The MDR program is replacing the part-time Sterile Supply Processing (SSP) College 


Certificate program that is delivered through the Centre for Continuing and Online Learning. 
Annually, the SSP program has approximately 40 applicants, most of whom are mature, 
second career or internationally educated students. Approximately 25 to 30 students are 
accepted and graduate to obtain employment in the Ottawa area. The MDR program is 
expected to attract the same demographic plus a new demographic: high school graduates 
who are looking for an entry-level healthcare program.  


 
(iii)    Staffing 
 The program will be staffed by 0.5 FTE existing professor and part-time professors who are 


subject matter experts. 
 
(iv) Admissions Requirements 


Program Eligibility:  
• English, Grade 12 (ENG4C or equivalent). 
• Accepted applicants must be in good health and submit a Health Assessment Form and 
an Immunization Form prior to the 6th week of term. 
 


(v) Advisory Committee Support:  
 At a meeting on April 26, 2012, the Advisory Committee unanimously endorsed the creation 


and offering of an Ontario College Certificate program for Medical Device Reprocessing. As 
quorum was not attained, additional endorsements were subsequently confirmed by email. 


 
(vi)  Strategic Alignment:  
 The implementation of this program reflects the strategic directions of the College including 


the commitment to digital learning with 30.7% online delivery, experiential learning with 
placements in local hospitals and other healthcare facilities that leverage relationships with 
business and industry, and meet the needs of students and the community.  


 
 
Appendix 1: Program of Study 
Appendix 2: Cash Flow Analysis 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Board of Governors approve the Medical Device Reprocessing Ontario College 
Certificate program effective Spring 2013  and seek validation of the program title and outcomes 
from the Credentials Validation Service and approval for funding from the Ministry of Training, 
Colleges and Universities. 


 







 


Medical Device Reprocessing, OCC -3- November 12, 2012 


Appendix 1: Program of Study 
LEVEL 1 – 15 Weeks 


 
COURSE 
NUMBER 


COURSE 
TITLE 


Hours  


Th
eo


ry
  


La
b 


Fi
el


d 
/ C


lin
ic


al
 


To
ta


l H
ou


rs
 


In
 


cl
as


s 


O
nl


in
e 


In
 


cl
as


s 


O
nl


in
e 


ENL1813S Communications I   45    45 


HLT0209 Medical Terminology   20    20 


HLT0210 Infection Control for Healthcare 30 15    45 


HLT0211 Introduction to Medical Device Reprocessing 35 10    45 


HLT0212 Medical Device Reprocessing Lab Skills I   45   45 


HLT0226 Anatomy and Physiology for Healthcare  45     45 


HLT0213  Medical Device Reprocessing Clinical I       40 40 


 TOTAL LEVEL HOURS 110 90 45  40 285 


 
LEVEL 2 – 17 Weeks 


 
COURSE 
NUMBER 


COURSE 
TITLE 


Hours  


Th
eo


ry
  


La
b 


Fi
el


d 
/ C


lin
ic


al
 


To
ta


l H
ou


rs
 


In
 


cl
as


s 


O
nl


in
e 


In
 


cl
as


s 


O
nl


in
e 


HLT0214  Surgical Instruments and Decontamination 25 20    45 


HLT0215  Packaging and Sterilization 25 20    45 


HLT0216  Inventory management, Storage and 
Distribution


25 20    45 


HLT0217  Scope Reprocessing 15  30   45 


ENV0002 Environmental Citizenship  45    45 


HLT0218    Medical Device Reprocessing Lab Skills II   45   45 


HLT0219  Medical Device Reprocessing Clinical II     80 80 


 TOTAL LEVEL HOURS 90 105 75  80 350 


HYBRID 30.7%    
      Certificate Program Total Hours 


635 


 








0 0 0 0 0


MEDICAL DEVICE REPROCESSING 
Ontario College Certificate
Cash Flow Analysis


TOTAL ENROLMENT 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
Year 1** 50 54 54 54 54 54


Tuition Fee per Semester 1,292 1,318 1,344 1,371 1,399 1,426


REVENUE
Fees 64,600 71,163 72,587 74,038 75,519 77,030
Grant* 36,226 75,357 114,488 117,394


Total Revenue 64,600 71,163 108,813 149,395 190,007 194,424


EXPENSES
FT Academic + Fringe (22.46%) 45,875 47,429 49,036 50,700 52,422
Temp Acad +  Fringe (9%) 60,755 35,266 35,266 35,266 35,266 35,266
FT Supp + Fringe (27.07%)
Temp Supp + Fringe (10%)


Operating 11,650 12,233 12,844 13,846 14,161 14,869
Total Expenses 72,405 93,374 95,539 98,148 100,127 102,557


CONTRIBUTION BEFORE -7,805 -22,211 13,274 51,247 89,880 91,867


INVESTMENTS
Equipment 40,000 0 0 0 0 0
C D l tCourse Development 50 00050,000 0 0 0 0 0
Renovations 0 0 0 0 0 0


Total Capital 90,000 0 0 0 0 0


NET CONTRIBUTION -97,805 -22,211 13,274 51,247 89,880 91,867


% -151.40% -31.21% 12.20% 34.30% 47.30% 47.25%


* Grant Value $ 4,358 
Program Weight 1.0, Funding Unit 1.0 (Estimate)
FT academic calculated at step 10, shared with another program
A number of variables are considered when calculating tuition and expenses; these are changed based on government 
direction as required


Note:


The purpose of the Cash Flow Analysis for a new program is to capture the direct revenues and expenses associated


with the program. The resulting contribution indicates the funds the program will generate to help support


the current operations of the Academic Area. Therefore, pre-existing costs such as department overheads 


and space costs are not included in the cash flow. These costs are captured in the annual Program Costing exercise.


**Enrolment Detail
Level 01 26 28 28 28 28 28
Level 02 24 26 26 26 26 26


50 54 54 54 54 54





		 Cash Flow






 


   
PRESENTATION TO BOARD OF GOVERNORS 


 
 Program Title:    Construction Techniques 
 Credential:   Ontario College Certificate 
 Program Length:   One Year  
 School:   Algonquin College in the Ottawa Valley 
 Dean:   Karen Davies 
 Proposed Start Date: Fall 2013 
 
PURPOSE 
 
This program prepares students to work within the building construction industry and address the 
anticipated shortages of skilled workers as a result of an aging workforce and local construction 
expansion. Students explore the foundational trades’ areas within the building construction sector 
and gain practical hands-on skills which provide opportunities to pursue employment, apprenticeship 
and/or further academic training.  
Students acquire knowledge and skills in hand and power tool usage, carpentry/framing techniques, 
blueprint reading, welding, hoisting and rigging, plumbing, applied construction geometry, 
mathematics and the Ontario Building Code.  In the second semester, students experience an 
authentic hands-on learning opportunity when constructing a community based building project.   
Graduates may find employment on residential, industrial and commercial construction sites.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Recommendations from the Strategic Programs and Services Planning Committee for new program 
opportunities in Pembroke included Pre-apprenticeship Carpentry and Building Construction 
programs, the former having started in October 2012, and the latter now under consideration. It has 
been recognized that these kinds of programs, coupled with the campus’s successful General 
Carpenter Apprenticeship program, would provide a strategic cluster of programs for Pembroke to 
meet the local needs of the growing building construction industry. 
 
The program will be delivered over two academic semesters and leverages existing tools, equipment 
and faculty expertise within the existing General Carpenter Apprenticeship program, which has been 
delivered in Pembroke for the past seven years.   
 
CONSIDERATIONS 
 
(i) Evidence of Need 
 There is a strong need for graduates of this program within local industry. A labour market 


analysis was completed by Hanover Research in July 2012. The findings indicate ample 
evidence to suggest sustained growth in the building construction sector in some key 
geographical areas within Renfrew County including Pembroke, Petawawa and Deep River 
communities. Of significance, it was reported the return of Canadian Forces from overseas, 
combined with the transfer of a critical helicopter fleet to Base Petawawa, is expected to 


Construction Techniques, OCC -1- November 12, 2012 
 







 


Construction Techniques, OCC -2- November 12, 2012 
 


increase the total population of the Town of Petawawa, leading to growth of private and public 
construction as families relocate to the area. Construction projects for Base Petawawa, alone, 
are expected to total nearly $1 billion through 2020.   


  
Furthermore, and not unlike the Muskoka region to Toronto residents, Renfrew County is 
becoming known as a wonderful cottage and retirement area for urban dwellers located in the 
City of Ottawa region which is fueling a building development and renovation business boom. 


 
 Finally, as proof of increased demand for our graduates, the Pembroke Campus recently 


delivered a Pre-Apprenticeship Carpentry program which included an 8-week paid work 
placement. All 20 students gained a placement, with many opportunities not being filled.  


 
(ii)  Student Interest  
 Comparable programs across the province show consistent applications and at-capacity 


enrolments. The number of secondary school students (grades 11 and 12) participating in co-
op placements or registered as apprentices in construction-related fields is on the rise in 
Renfrew County. Interest in the recent Pre-Apprenticeship Carpentry program far exceeded the 
number of seats available. 


  
(iii) Staffing 


Staffing costs will be attributed to part-time and partial load faculty with consideration given to a 
full-time hire once the program is stable. 


 
 (iv) Admissions Requirements 
 Program Eligibility:  


• English, Grade 12 (ENG4C or equivalent).  
• Mathematics, (Grade 12 MAP4C) or equivalent. 
• Mathematics, (Grade 12 MCT4C) is recommended.  


   
(v) Advisory Committee Support  
 The Program Advisory Committee, comprised of local builders, industry related employers and 


secondary technical teachers, fully supports the need for this program. It provided its formal 
motion of support and recommendation for College approval on August 28, 2012. 


 
(vi) Strategic Alignment  


The implementation of this program reflects the strategic directions of the College, including 
the commitment to digital learning, with 20% online for non-shop courses, laddering 
opportunities, leveraging of relationships with industry with 100 hours of hands-on community 
projects and industry certifications, and meeting the needs of students and the community. 
This program was identified as a new opportunity in the Strategic Programs and Services 
Planning Final Report. 


 
 
Appendix 1: Program of Study 
Appendix 2: Cash Flow Analysis 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the Board of Governors approve the Construction Techniques Ontario College Certificate 
program effective Fall 2013 and seek validation of the program title and outcomes from the 
Credentials Validation Service and approval for funding from the Ministry of Training, Colleges and 







 


Construction Techniques, OCC -3- November 12, 2012 
 


Universities. 







 


Construction Techniques, OCC -4- November 12, 2012 


Appendix 1:  Program of Study 
LEVEL 1 – 15 Weeks 


 


 
COURSE 
NUMBER 


COURSE 
TITLE 


Hours  


Th
eo


ry
  


La
b 


Fi
el


d 
/ C


lin
ic


al
 


To
ta


l H
ou


rs
 


In
 c


la
ss


 


O
nl


in
e 


In
 c


la
ss


 


O
nl


in
e 


CON7014 Building Tools and Materials 50 10 75   135 
CON8115 Construction Safety  15 5 10   30 
MAT7013 Applied Construction Geometry 21  9   30 
DAT7222 Computer Applications for the Trades 32     32 
DRA7331 Plans, Specifications and Codes I 32     32 
ENL1813T Communications I 15 30    45 
MAT7014 Applied Mathematics for the Trades I 30     30 
 TOTAL LEVEL HOURS 195 45 94   334 


 
LEVEL 2 – 15 Weeks 


 


 
COURSE 
NUMBER 


COURSE 
TITLE 


Hours  
Th


eo
ry


  


La
b 


Fi
el


d 
/ C


lin
ic


al
 


To
ta


l H
ou


rs
 


In
 c


la
ss


 


O
nl


in
e 


In
 c


la
ss


 


O
nl


in
e 


CON7015 Residential Framing and Exterior 65  85   150 
MAT7015 Applied Mathematics for the Trades II 24     24 
DRA7332 Plans, Specifications and Codes II 32     32 
CON7016 Fundamentals of Building Science  22 8    30 
PLU7011 Introduction to Plumbing  15  15   30 
CON7017 Collaborating with Supporting Trades 24     24 
WEL7310 Metal Cutting and Welding 8  16   24 
GEDxxxx General Education Elective  45    45 
 TOTAL LEVEL HOURS 190 53 116   359 


   
693 Hybrid 20.29%   Certificate Program Total Hours:  


 








Construction Techniques
Ontario College Certificate
Cash Flow Analysis


TOTAL ENROLMENT 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
Year 1** 47 47 47 47 47 47


Tuition Fee per Semester 1,292 1,318 1,344 1,371 1,399 1,426


REVENUE
Fees 60,724 61,938 63,177 64,441 65,730 67,044
Grant* 48,817 97,634 146,451 146,451


Total Revenue 60,724 61,938 111,994 162,075 212,181 213,495


EXPENSES
FT Academic + Fringe (22.46%)
Temp Acad +  Fringe (9%) 82,110 82,110 82,110 82,110 82,110 82,110
FT Supp + Fringe (27.07%)
Temp Supp + Fringe (10%) 5,722 5,722 5,722 5,722 5,722 5,722


Operating 19,100 20,055 21,058 22,111 23,216 24,377
Total Expenses 106,932 107,887 108,890 109,943 111,048 112,209


CONTRIBUTION BEFORE -46,208 -45,949 3,104 52,132 101,132 101,286


INVESTMENTS
Equipment
Course Development 2,000 0 0 0 0 0
R tiRenovations 00 00 00 00 00 00


Total Capital 2,000 0 0 0 0 0


NET CONTRIBUTION -48,208 -45,949 3,104 52,132 101,132 101,286


% -79.39% -74.18% 2.77% 32.17% 47.66% 47.44%


* Grant Value $ 4,358 
Program Weight 1.3, Funding Unit 1.1 (based on similar programs)


A number of variables are considered when calculating tuition and expenses; these are changed based on government 
direction as required
Note:


The purpose of the Cash Flow Analysis for a new program is to capture the direct revenues and expenses associated


with the program. The resulting contribution indicates the funds the program will generate to help support


the current operations of the Academic Area. Therefore, pre-existing costs such as department overheads 


and space costs are not included in the cash flow. These costs are captured in the annual Program Costing exercise.


**Enrolment Detail
Level 01 25 25 25 25 25 25
Level 02 22 22 22 22 22 22


47 47 47 47 47 47





		 Cash Flow






 


 


Presentation to: Board of Governors 
Subject: 2012/13 2nd Quarter Financial Report  
Date: November 12, 2012 
Presenter(s):  Duane McNair, Vice-President, Finance and Administration 
 
Purpose 
 
To present the 2nd Quarter financial projection for the 2012/13 fiscal year.  
 
Background 
 
On April 9, 2012 the Board of Governors approved the 2012/13 Annual Budget with a 
net cash flow of $1.0 million and a net contribution after Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) adjustments and expenditures from internally restricted funds of $3.3 
million.   
 
On June 11, 2012, the Board of Governors approved the 2011/12 Financial Statements 
which included authority to spend $9.1 million from internally restricted funds.  The 
Board approved using $23 million of internally restricted funds to construct the new 
Pembroke campus rather than long term finance the project through the Ontario 
Financing Authority at the March 12th, 2012 Board meeting. 
 
Discussion/Considerations 
 
This financial report reflects the projected revenue and expenditures using the most 
current information available from deans, directors, chairs and managers throughout 
the College.  This forecast shows a projected increase in the total net cash flow 
position from $1.0 million to $4.3 million before GAAP adjustments.  The 2nd Quarter 
Financial report is attached and includes variance analyses compared to the approved 
budget. 
 
 
Revenue Outlook 
 
Domestic enrolment is trending 3% higher than originally forecasted resulting in higher 
domestic tuition fees revenue.  This is offset by a 15% lower than expected 
International student enrolment and the corresponding tuition fees.  The International 
Education Centre is exploring the reasons for this shortfall and developing strategies 
to realize the College’s International student enrolment objectives going forward. 
 
The Ontario Special Bursary Program funding has been discontinued by the Ministry 
of Training Colleges and Universities.  This has resulted in a net loss of approximately 
$660,000 for the College for 2012/13 and $900,000 in 2013/14. 
 
Contract activity revenue increased by a net of $1.3 million, comprised of an increase 


 1







 2


of $4.8 million for provincial contracts and decreases of $3.5 million from other 
activities including the Corporate Training Centre, the Personal Development Institute, 
Applied Research and all other miscellaneous contracts. 
 
Expenditures Outlook 
 
Reductions for in-year salaries and benefits related to the academic and 
administrative employee groups and staff vacancies have been reflected in this report 
showing an estimated savings of $1.6 million.  Other operating costs and provisions 
established for contingencies were reviewed and adjusted based on current 
information. 
 
Net contract activity expenditures have increased by $3.3 million, which is comprised 
of an increase of $4.6 million to match the increase in provincial contract revenue and 
a decrease of $1.3 million in variable costs associated with the decline in revenue for 
the Corporate Training Centre, the Personal Development Institute and Applied 
Research. 
 
Strategic Investment Priorities Schedule 
 
During the 1st Quarter of the year, the College was advised that it would receive 
Apprenticeship Enhancement funding of $934,000 and College Equipment renewal 
funding of $559,000. 
 
The Strategic Investments Schedule includes estimated cash requirements for 
Campus Development such as the Student Commons and Pembroke projects, as well 
as various strategic projects.   
 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the Board of Governors approves the report as presented. 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 








2ND QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORT  | 2012 - 2013 


A Presentation to the Board of Governors 
November 12, 2012 







  


    
2012/2013 2nd Quarter Financial Report 


 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


 


 


Summary of 2nd Quarter Financial Report .......................................................................................   3 


Adjustments for Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ........................................................   4 


Statement of Financial Position ..........................................................................................................   5 


Revenue Schedule & Variance Analysis ...........................................................................................   6 


Expenditures Schedule & Variance Analysis ....................................................................................   8 


Strategic Investment Priorities Schedule and Variance Analysis………………………………… 10 


Internally Restricted Net Assets Schedule…………………………………………………………….. 12 


Summary of Funded Positions……………………………………...................................................... 13 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Q2 Financial Report







2012/2013 2nd Quarter Financial Report


SUMMARY


(all figures in $ 000's)


Approved 


Annual Budget


Q2 Year-End 


Projection


Q2 vs. 


Approved 


Variance F/(U)


Funded Activity/College Operations   


Revenue 190,813$           191,569$           756$                  


Expenditures 190,813             187,076             3,736                 


    Net Cash Flow - 4,492                 4,492                 


   


Contract Activity  


Revenue 27,781               29,107               1,326                 


Expenditures 23,405               26,739               (3,334)                


    Net Cash Flow 4,376                 2,368                 (2,008)                


 


College Ancillary Services  


Revenue 40,641               39,939               (703)                   


Expenditures 36,585               35,879               706                    


    Net Cash Flow 4,057                 4,060                 3                        


International Education Centre


Revenue 16,575               14,420               (2,155)                


Expenditures 12,032               10,844               1,188                 


    Net Cash Flow 4,543                 3,576                 (967)                   


Strategic Investment Priorities


Revenue 48,795               32,842               (15,953)              


Expenditures 60,771               43,123               17,649               


    Net Cash Flow (11,976)              (10,280)              1,696                 


TOTAL REVENUE 324,605             307,877             (16,728)              


TOTAL EXPENDITURES 323,606             303,662             19,944               


NET CASH FLOW 1,000                4,216                3,216                


Adjustments to Comply with Generally Accepted 


Accounting Principles (GAAP)
1


7,072                 17,588               10,516               


NET CONTRIBUTION before Expenditures 
from Internally Restricted Funds 8,072$              21,804$            13,732$            


Expenditures from Internally Restricted Funds 
2


(4,800)                (17,236)              (12,436)              


NET CONTRIBUTION as per GAAP 3,272$              4,568$              1,296$              


1
 See Schedule of Adjustments for GAAP on Page 4 for details.


2
 See Strategic Investment Priorities Schedule on Page 16 for details. 


Q2 Financial Report 3







2012/2013 2nd Quarter Financial Report


ADJUSTMENTS FOR GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES


(all figures in $ 000's)


Approved 


Annual Budget


Q2 Year-End 


Projection


Q2 vs. 


Approved 


Variance F/(U)


Adjustments to Comply with Generally Accepted 


Accounting Principles (GAAP)


Add: Capital Assets (net) 32,974$             28,794$             (4,180)$              
Add: Principal Portion of Debt Payments Expensed 2,053                 2,053                 -                         
Add: Contributions to Internally Restricted Funds 


Expensed 2,580                 2,569                 (11)                     


Less: Loan Proceeds Recorded as Revenue
1


(23,822)              (9,126)                14,696               


Less: Amortization of Capital Assets (7,230)                (7,219)                11                      
Less: Change in Vacation, Sick Leave & Post-


Employment Benefits                     517                     517 -                         


TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS TO COMPLY WITH GAAP 7,072$               17,588$             10,516$             


1
Loan for Pembroke Campus paid in full in July 2012.


Note: The College manages and reports its Annual Budget on a cash flow basis with a targeted $1 million Net 


Cash Flow.  Capital expenditures, the principal portion of debt servicing payments and budgeted contributions to 


Internally Restricted Funds are shown as expenditures. Capital grants, donations for capital buildings & equipment 


and loan proceeds are shown as revenue. The above adjustments are required to convert the College’s net 


contribution from a Net Cash Flow basis to a GAAP basis. 


Q2 Financial Report 4







2012/2013 2nd Quarter Financial Report


STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION


(all figures in $ 000's)


March 31, 2013


Approved 


Annual Budget


March 31, 2013


Q2 Projected


Q2 vs. 


Approved 


Variance F/(U)


ASSETS


Current Assets


Cash & Short Term Investments 23,616$             22,922$             (694)$                


Accounts Receivable 21,986               21,986               -                        


Inventory 2,154                 1,644                 (510)                  


Prepaid Expenses 907                   1,200                 293                   


48,663              47,752              (911)                  


Investments 43,204              43,000              (204)                  


Endowment Assets 15,871              17,056              1,185                


Capital Assets 284,214            283,799            (415)                  


TOTAL ASSETS 391,952$          391,607$          (345)$                


LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS


Current Liabilities


Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities 26,811$             26,500$             (311)$                


Accrued Salaries & Employee Deductions Payable 10,431               10,000               (431)                  


Deferred Revenue 22,068               20,000               (2,068)               


Current Portion of Long Term Debt 2,386                 2,442                 56                     


61,696              58,942              (2,754)               


Long Term Debt 62,986              62,930              (56)                    


Vacation, Sick Leave & Post-Employment Benefits 13,841              13,926              85                     


Deferred Capital Contributions 163,114            163,634            520                   


Interest Rate Swaps 8,744                8,744                -                        


Net Assets


Unrestricted 1,000                 1,000                 -                        


Investment in Capital Assets 55,731               54,602               (1,129)               


Vacation, Sick Leave & Post-Employment Benefits (13,842)             (13,926)             (84)                    


Internally Restricted  


     Appropriations 2,000                 -                        (2,000)               


     Specific Reserves 9,797                 9,837                 40                     


        Contingency Reserve Fund -                        4,500                 4,500                 


     Reserve Funds 19,758               19,106               (652)                  


Interest Rate Swaps (8,744)               (8,744)               -                        


Endowment Fund 15,871               17,056               1,185                 


81,571              83,431              1,860                


TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS 391,952$          391,607$          (345)$                


Q2 Financial Report 5







2012/2013 2nd Quarter Financial Report


REVENUE SCHEDULE


(all figures in $ 000's)


Approved 


Annual Budget


Q2 Year-End 


Projection


Q2 vs. 


Approved 


Variance F/(U)


FUNDED ACTIVITY/COLLEGE OPERATIONS


     


Grants    


Post Secondary Activity 94,075$             94,101$             26$                    


Apprentice 4,855                 4,789                 (65)                    


Flow-Through Student Aid 1,808                 1,148                 (660)                  


Collaborative Programs 3,404                 3,228                 (176)                  


TOTAL GRANTS 104,142             103,267             (875)                  


Tuition Fees


Full-Time Post Secondary 50,823               52,174               1,351                 


Part-Time 9,684                 9,862                 178                    


Adult Training 1,643                 1,583                 (60)                    


Student IT & Mobile Computing Fees 4,513                 4,622                 109                    


TOTAL TUITION FEES 66,663               68,241               1,578                 


Other    


Early Learning Centre 938                    938                    -                         


Student Ancillary Fees 4,214                 4,588                 375                    


Student Services Grant 100                    100                    -                         


Investment Income 1,587                 1,433                 (154)                  
Transfer from International Education Centre


1
6,362                 5,202                 (1,160)                


Miscellaneous 6,808                 7,800                 992                    


      


TOTAL OTHER 20,008               20,061               53                      


      


TOTAL FUNDED ACTIVITY/COLLEGE OPERATIONS 190,813            191,569            756                    


     


CONTRACT ACTIVITY 27,781              29,107              1,326                


COLLEGE ANCILLARY SERVICES 40,641              39,939              (703)                  


INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION CENTRE 16,575              14,420              (2,155)               


    


STRATEGIC INVESTMENT PRIORITIES 48,795              32,842              (15,953)             


TOTAL REVENUE 324,605$          307,877$          (16,728)$           


1
50% of full-time tuition fees from International Students is shared with Academic Services (part of Funded 


Activity/College Operations).


Q2 Financial Report 6







2012/2013 2nd Quarter Financial Report


REVENUE SCHEDULE


Variance Analysis (all figures in $ 000's)


Description Variance F/(U)


     


Flow-Through Student Aid (660)$                Ontario Ministry of Training, Colleges and Universities (MTCU) discontinued funding of the 


Ontario Special Bursary Program (OSBP) (announced after budget was prepared). 


Full-Time Post Secondary 1,351$               Overall enrolment is expected to be 3% higher than planned.


Student Ancillary Fees 375$                  Higher online learning service fees due to higher enrolment.


Transfer from International Education Centre (1,160)$              International student enrolment lower than expected resulting in a lower transfer to Funded 


Activity/College Operations. 


Miscellaneous 992$                  Ontario College Application Service (OCAS) processing fees ($384K) not included in budget 


(processing through colleges introduced after the budget) (a flow-through revenue with a 


small amount retained by the College); and additional hosting fees received from other 


Colleges for their students participating in our on line courses ($227K).  Balance due to 


changes in internal revenues (offset by internal charges).


CONTRACT ACTIVITY 1,326$               Increase of $4.8M for provincial contracts and decreases of $3.5M for all other lines of 


business, including the Corporate Training Centre, the Personal Development Institute, Applied 


Research and all other miscellaneous contracts.


COLLEGE ANCILLARY SERVICES (703)$                Cadre - The Economic Cities (Saudi Arabia campus) no longer intending to purchase new 


textbooks. 


INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION CENTRE (2,155)$              15% lower than expected student enrolment. 


STRATEGIC INVESTMENT PRIORITIES (15,953)$            See Strategic Investment Priorities Variances.


Total Explained Variances (16,587)$            


Other Minor Variances (142)$                


Total Variance (16,728)$            


Comments


Q2 Financial Report 7







2012/2013 2nd Quarter Financial Report


EXPENDITURES SCHEDULE


(all figures in $ 000's)


Approved 


Annual Budget


Q2 Year-End 


Projection


Q2 vs. 


Approved 


Variance F/(U)


FUNDED ACTIVITY/COLLEGE OPERATIONS


      


TOTAL SALARIES & BENEFITS 134,969$           133,396$           1,572$               


Other Operating Costs


Building Maintenance & Utilities 9,224                 9,228                 (4)                      


Contract Services 7,727                 8,031                 (304)                  


Contingencies 6,169                 4,032                 2,137                 


Mandated Student Aid 4,673                 4,759                 (86)                    


Information Technology * 3,968                 4,409                 (441)                  


Instructional Supplies & Equipment 3,157                 3,456                 (299)                  


Promotion 2,366                 2,034                 332                    


Debt Servicing 2,298                 2,298                 -                        


Flow-Through Student Aid 1,800                 1,148                 652                    


Other 14,463               14,285               177                    


TOTAL OTHER OPERATING 55,844               53,680               2,164                 


TOTAL FUNDED ACTIVITY/COLLEGE OPERATIONS 190,813            187,076            3,736                


CONTRACT ACTIVITY 23,405              26,739              (3,334)               


COLLEGE ANCILLARY SERVICES 36,585              35,879              706                   


INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION CENTRE 12,032              10,844              1,188                


     


STRATEGIC INVESTMENT PRIORITIES 60,771              43,123              17,649              


TOTAL EXPENDITURES 323,606$          303,662$          19,944$            


* Grouped under "Other" in 2012/13 Approved Budget.


Q2 Financial Report 8







2012/2013 2nd Quarter Financial Report


EXPENDITURES SCHEDULE


Variance Analysis (all figures in $ 000's)


Description Variance F/(U) Comments


   


Salaries & Benefits 1,572$               Budget included 2% increase for full-time academic salaries. Settlement 


contains no increase. Partially offset by increased part-time academic salaries 


to accommodate increased enrolment. Vacancy savings have also been 


realized. 


 


Contract Services (304)$                Increase in contract teachers to serve higher than planned enrolment in 


Distance Education courses. 


 


Contingencies 2,137$               Provision for uncertainty of Ontario Provincial Budget reductions measures has 


been assessed and reduced accordingly.


 


Information Technology (441)$                 Purchase of new software for Institutional Research and increases in license 


fees offset by savings elsewhere.


Instructional Supplies & Equipment (299)$                Increase due to higher enrolment. 


Promotion 332$                  Business Development promotion plans scaled back from budget. 


Flow-Through Student Aid 652$                  Flow-through funding for the Ontario Special Bursary Program (OSBP) was 


eliminated in the Ontario budget. OSBP bursary payments are anticipated to 


be approximately as budgeted but will be reported under Mandated Student 


Aid and Other Expenses.  The estimated net impact on total expenses for this 


year is $392K, which is offset by savings elsewhere.


CONTRACT ACTIVITY (3,334)$             Increase of $4.6M to match the increase in provincial contract revenue and a 


decrease of $1.3M in variable costs associated with the decline in revenue for 


the Corporate Training Centre, the Personal Development Institute and 


Applied Research.


COLLEGE ANCILLARY SERVICES 706$                  Cost of goods sold savings associated with the loss of revenue from intended 


textbook orders from Cadre - The Economic Cities contract. 


INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION CENTRE 1,188$               International student enrolment lower than expected resulting in a lower 


transfer to Funded Activity/College Operations. 


STRATEGIC INVESTMENT PRIORITIES 17,649$             See Strategic Investment Priorities Variances. 


Total Explained Variances 19,857$             


Other Minor Variances 87$                   


Total Variance 19,944$             


Q2 Financial Report 9







2012/2013 2nd Quarter Financial Report


STRATEGIC INVESTMENT PRIORITIES SCHEDULE


(all figures in $ 000's)


Approved 


Annual Budget


Internally 


Restricted Funds 


Approved June 


2012 
1 


Total Approved
Q2 Year-End 


Projection


Q2 vs. Total 


Approved 


Variance F/(U)


 (A)  (B) (C) = (A) + (B)  (D)     (E) = (D) - (C)  


Campus Expansion


Source of Funds       


Ontario Financing Authority (OFA) Loan Proceeds 23,822$            -$                            23,822$            9,126$           (14,695)$           


Students' Association Contribution 16,389              -                              16,389              14,117           (2,272)               


Capital Campaign 1,300                -                              1,300                1,427             127                   


Enabling Accessibility Fund 1,000                -                              1,000                976               (24)                    


Other 2,500                -                              2,500                2,500             -                        


Internally Restricted Funds - Reserve Funds 
2, 3


-                        -                              -                        10,562           10,562              


45,010              -                              45,010              38,709           (6,301)               


 Expenditures
Pembroke Campus 19,224              -                              19,224              17,028           2,196                
Student Commons 25,786              -                              25,786              21,681           4,105                


45,010              -                              45,010              38,709           6,301                


      


NET CASH FLOW - CAMPUS EXPANSION -                        -                              -                       -                    -                        


Other Projects


Source of Funds       
Digital College Grant 3,200                -                              3,200                2,602             (598)                  
Facilities Renewal 585                   -                              585                   601               16                     
Apprenticeship Enhancement Fund -                        -                              -                        934               934                   
College Equipment Renewal Fund -                        -                              -                        559               559                   


Internally Restricted Funds - Appropriations/Specific 


Reserves 
2


4,800                4,339                      9,139                6,674             (2,465)               


8,585                4,339                      12,924              11,369           (1,555)               


 


 Expenditures


Digital College 3,200                879                         4,079                4,166             (87)                    


College Technologies 2,000                184                         2,184                1,803             381                   


College Space & Infrastructure 2,585                1,057                      3,642                3,480             162                   


New Program Initiatives 250                   -                               250                   250               -                        


Academic & Other Equipment 1,513                -                              1,513                1,513             -                        


Business Plan Priorities 9,637                1,514                      11,151              7,491             3,660                


Apprenticeship Enhancement Fund -                        -                              -                        934               (934)                  


Ancillary Projects Funded by Internally Restricted 


Funds 
2


-                        705                         705                   705               -                        


Capital Campaign Bridge Financing Funded by 


Internally Restricted Funds 
2


1,376                -                              1,376                1,308             68                     


20,561              4,339                      24,900              21,650           3,250                


NET CASH FLOW - OTHER PROJECTS (11,976)             -                              (11,976)            (10,280)         1,696                


SOURCE OF FUNDS:      


Annual Budget 48,795              -                              48,795              32,842           (15,953)             


Internally Restricted Funds 
2


4,800                4,339                      9,139                17,236           8,097                


TOTAL REVENUE 53,595              4,339                      57,934              50,079          (7,856)               


      


EXPENDITURES:          


Annual Budget 60,771              4,339                      60,771              43,123           17,649              


Internally Restricted Funds 
2, 3


4,800                -                              9,139                17,236           (8,097)               
 


TOTAL EXPENDITURES 65,571               4,339                      69,910              60,359           9,551                 


        


TOTAL NET CASH FLOW (11,976)$           -$                            (11,976)$          (10,280)$       1,696                


1
 Use of additional reserves approved by the Board of Governors in June 2012. 


3
 $23M drawdown of reserve funds for Pembroke campus approved by Board of Governors in March 2012.  


2
 Internally Restricted Funds were not included on this schedule in the 2012/13 Approved Budget. They have been added to the revised budget and 


projection to provide a complete picture of Strategic Investments. 


Q2 Financial Report 10







2012/2013 2nd Quarter Financial Report


STRATEGIC INVESTMENT PRIORITIES SCHEDULE


Variance Analysis (all figures in $000's)


Description
Variance 


F/(U)
Comments


Ontario Financing Authority (OFA) Loan Proceeds  $            (14,695) Reflects revised cash flow for Student Commons building and repayment of loan for Pembroke campus in July. 


Pembroke Campus will be financed from reserves as approved by the Board of Governors.  


Students' Association Contribution  $              (2,272) Reflects revised cash flow for Pembroke and Student Commons buildings (no change to overall cost).


Internally Restricted Funds (Campus Expansion)  $             10,562 Use of reserves to finance Pembroke Campus. 


Pembroke Campus  $               2,196 Reflects revised cash flow for Pembroke campus (no change to overall cost).


Student Commons  $               4,105 Reflects revised cash flow for Student Commons building (no change to overall cost).


Digital College Grant  $                 (598) Approved budget reflects preliminary list of qualifying projects to be completed in the current fiscal year. Final list 


is lower due to timing of work; MTCU grant adjusted accordingly.


Apprenticeship Enhancement Fund  $                  934 Apprenticeship Enhancement Fund grant announced after budget was prepared (offset by equivalent 


expenditures).


College Equipment Renewal Fund  $                  559 College Equipment Renewal Fund grant announced after budget was prepared. Grant will be used to fund 


budgeted projects. 


Internally Restricted Funds (Other Projects)  $              (2,465) In-year allocation to address provincial budget risk contingency no longer required ($2,034K).


Revised project costs and deferral of various projects to next fiscal year ($431K). 


College Technologies  $                  381 Reflects partial deferral of PeopleSoft Stabilization project to next fiscal year. 


Business Plan Priorities  $               3,660 In-year allocation to address provincial budget risk contingency no longer required ($2,034K).


   Revised project costs and deferral of various projects to next fiscal year ($1,626K). 


Apprenticeship Enhancement Fund Expenditures  $                 (934) Apprenticeship Enhancement Fund grant announced after budget was prepared (offset by equivalent grant).


Total Explained Variances 1,433$                


Other Minor Variances (262)$                 


Total Variance 1,696$                


Q2 Financial Report 11







2012/2013 2nd Quarter Financial Report


INTERNALLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS SCHEDULE


(all figures in $ 000's)


Year-Ended 


March 31, 2012 


(Audited)
1


Projected In Year 


Use of Funds (Q2)


Projected Year 


End Adjustments 


(Q2)


Projected 


March 31, 2013 


(Q2)


 Appropriations 1,077$               1,058$                   (19)$                     -$                       


 Specific Reserves:     


    Other Projects & Initiatives 7,357                 3,718                     -                           3,639                 


    Ancillary Services Reserve Fund 5,391                 705                        998                       5,684                 


    Employment Stabilization Funds 452                    10                          55                         497                    


    Other Student Aid 22                      10                          5                           17                      


13,222               4,443                     1,058                    9,837                 


Contingency Reserve Fund 1,750                 -                             2,750                    4,500                 


 Reserve Funds:      


    Future Capital Expansion - Sale of Rideau Campus 6,562                 6,562                     -                           -                         


    Future Capital Expansion 32,729               15,578                   1,955                    19,106               


     Rural Campus Reserve Fund 2,168                 2,168                     -                           -                         


41,459               24,308                   1,955                    19,106               


 TOTAL INTERNALLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 57,507$             29,809$                 5,744$                 33,443$             


1 
Actuals as per the the 2011/12 Financial Statement, note 19(b).


Q2 Financial Report 12







2012/2013 2nd Quarter Financial Report


SUMMARY OF FUNDED POSITIONS


Admin Support Academic Total


Positions 


Opened


Positions 


Closed


Positions 


Transferred Admin Support Academic Total


President & Board of Governors 


President's Office 3            -             -                 3                -                  -                  -                    3              -                 -                 3                


Human Resources


Human Resources 22          2            1                25              -                  (1)                -                    21            2                1                24              


Administration


Vice-President's Office 2            -             -                 2                -                  -                  -                    2              -                 -                 2                


College Ancillary Services 18          70          -                 88              -                  -                  -                    18            70              -                 88              


Finance & Administrative Services 7            29          -                 36              -                  (2)                -                    7              27              -                 34              


Information, Institutional Research and 


Technology Services
2


10          66          -                 76              -                  (1)                -                    9              66              -                 75              


Physical Resources 14          39          -                 53              -                  -                  -                    14            39              -                 53              


Total 51          204        -                 255            -                  (3)                -                    50            202            -                 252            


Student Services


Vice-President's Office 2            -             -                 2                -                  -                  -                    2              -                 -                 2                


Student Support Services 7            23          17              47              3                 (1)                -                    9              24              16              49              


Algonquin College Foundation
2


3            2            -                 5                -                  (1)                -                    3              1                -                 4                


Registrar 10          59          -                 69              -                  (1)                -                    10            58              -                 68              


Total 22          84          17              123            3                 (3)                -                    24            83              16              123            


Business Development


Vice-President's Office 3            1            -                 4                -                  -                  -                    3              1                -                 4                


Applied Research & Development 2            -             -                 2                -                  -                  -                    2              -                 -                 2                


International & Corporate Business Development 9            11          21              41              -                  -                  -                    9              11              21              41              


Business Development & Corporate Training
1


2            3            -                 5                1                 -                  -                    2              4                -                 6                


Total 16          15          21              52              1                 -                  -                    16            16              21              53              


Academic Services


Vice-President's Office 12          2            12              26              -                  -                  (10)                12            2                2                16              


School/College Work Initiative -            1            -                 1                -                  -                  -                    -               1                -                 1                


Faculty of Arts, Media & Design 7            28          107            142            2                 (4)                5                   7              27              111            145            


School of Business 5            9            81              95              2                 (1)                2                   5              8                85              98              


School of Hospitality & Tourism 3            9            37              49              -                  -                  2                   3              9                39              51              


Faculty of Technology & Trades 6            25          137            168            3                 -                  2                   6              25              142            173            


Algonquin College Heritage Institute 2            11          11              24              -                  -                  -                    2              11              11              24              


Faculty of Health, Public Safety & Community 


Studies 8            31          125            164            -                  (2)                -                    8              31              123            162            


Learning & Teaching Services 5            21          4                30              -                  -                  (1)                  5              21              3                29              


Mobile Computing -            1            -                 1                -                  -                  -                    -               1                -                 1                


Centre for Continuing and Online Learning 4            17          -                 21              -                  -                  -                    4              17              -                 21              


Algonquin College in the Ottawa Valley 6            27          25              58              1                 -                  -                    6              27              26              59              


Total 58          182        539            779            8                 (7)                -                    58            180            542            780            


Advancement


Executive Director's Office 3            2            -                 5                -                  -                  -                    3              2                -                 5                


Recruitment 2            6            -                 8                -                  (1)                -                    2              5                -                 7                


College Marketing 2            8            -                 10              -                  -                  -                    2              8                -                 10              


Total 7            16          -                 23              -                  (1)                -                    7              15              -                 22              


SUBTOTAL 179        503        578            1,260         12               (15)              -                    179          498            580            1,257         


Positions to be Closed in Future -            -             -                 (19)             -                  15               -                    -               -                 -                 (4)               


COLLEGE TOTAL 1,241         12               -                  -                    1,253         


1
Formerly named Workforce & Personal Development


2
Formerly part of Business Development


Approved Annual Budget 2012/13 Position Changes Full-Time Funded at Q2 Projection 2012/13


The complement report represents the total number of positions for each of the College’s major areas assuming the proposed budget is accepted.  


Not all positions are 100% funded in the budget as some positions are vacant at the start of the year and other positions have a start date projected for other than April 1st.


Q2 Financial Report 13








1 | P a g e  
 


 


Business Plan Update to the Board of Governors 
November 12, 2012 


2012‐2017 
Strategic 
Directions 


2012/2013 
Initiatives 


2012/2013
Measures 


Q2 Update 
November 12, 2012 


 


STATUS:  
RED 


YELLOW 
GREEN 


Applied Education and Training 


AE1.  Deliver an 
exemplary 
applied 
education and 
training 
experience. 


AE1.1  Engage students, faculty 
and clients to deliver more 
applied research projects. 


AE1.1  700 students, 60 faculty 
and 120 employers engaged in 
applied research projects 


To date, the following has 
been achieved: 


• 520 students 
• 40 faculty 
• 80 companies 


On track to meet or exceed 
the targets for the academic 
year. 


 
 


  AE1.2  Embrace digital 
education, creating a more 
flexible, engaging, effective and 
efficient learning environment. 


AE1.2.1 Open Education Resource 
and Etext strategy developed. 


Meeting with Senior 
Executives of major 
publishing companies 
(Pearson, Nelson, Wiley) has 
taken place. Agreement in 
place to conduct a pilot with 
Level 01 intake of a few 
mobile programs in 13W 
term. 


    AE1.2.2. 46 programs converted 
to mobile (6000 FTE students). 


44 programs have been 
converted to MLPs for 12F 
term. On track to meet or 
exceed the target for the 
academic year. 


    AE1.2.3. Online enrolment 
increased by 200 FTE students. 


Online enrolment, to date, 
has exceeded original 
target by 41 FTEs. 


AE2.  Create a 
unique suite of 
programs, 
products and 
services geared 
to meet the 
needs and 
expectations of 
our clients and 
students. 


AE2.1   Lead  and support 
Ottawa’s Regional Labour 
Market Planning and Talent 
Management initiative in 
collaboration with Employment 
Ontario, industry and 
community partners. 
 
 
 
 


AE2.1 Labour Market Planning and 
Talent Management activities and 
report completed. 
 
 


 


Labour Market Planning and 
Talent Management 
activities and report are on 
track for completion by end 
March 2013. 







2 | P a g e  
 


  AE2.2  Create new offerings 
and services and enhance 
existing offerings and services 
which address non post‐
secondary client needs. 
 


AE2.2  New/enhanced offerings 
and services launched including: 
• Twelve new corporate training 


offerings, (including four new 
technology‐enabled offerings) 


• New Language Institute hybrid 
courses and online placement 
test 


• Fifteen new PDI offerings 


Algonquin College Corporate 
Training (ACCT) is delivering 
eleven (11) new corporate 
training offerings across five 
targeted economic sectors 
(construction, justice and 
security, financial, 
Aboriginal/First 
Nations/Inuit, technology). 
Projected Completion March 
31 2013.  
 


   
The technology‐enabled 
corporate training offerings 
are currently under 
development for delivery in 
Q4. 
 
Five Language Institute 
courses are in process of 
conversion to hybrid 
delivery. 
 
A proposal for the creation 
of the online French as a 
Second Language Placement 
Test will be submitted by the 
end of October. 
 
Fifteen new PDI offerings 
were launched so far in 12‐
13. 


  AE2.3 Increase the number of 
students in applied degree and 
graduate certificate programs. 


AE2.3  Applied degrees subject to 
decisions regarding the  
Drummond Report.  At least one 
new graduate certificate 
developed by each school. 10 new 
graduate certificate programs 
approved. 


Two new applications for 
degree Ministerial Consent 
will be submitted. 
Ministerial Consent has been 
received for the Bachelor of 
Building Science degree 
program, along with the 
associated breadth strategy. 
 
To date in the 12‐13 
academic year, eight (8) 
Graduate Certificates have 
either been approved by CVS 
and MTCU, are in the process 
of being approved, or are in 
the development stage. 


AE3.  Leverage 
technology to 
enhance the 
educational 
experience. 


AE3.1  Convert College Website 
to WordPress 
 


AE3.1  100% conversion of College 
websites to WordPress 
completed. 


RFP submitted to Purchasing 
on Oct. 17, 2012 







3 | P a g e  
 


  AE3.2  Provide access to the 
learning management system 
to local and international users 
on a 7 day, 24 hr/day basis. 


AE3.2  LM System available on a 
99.9% basis. 


To date, the learning 
management system met the 
expectations for availability 
with the exception of a 
period of time in late 
September when off campus 
users did not have access 
due to internet provider 
disruption. 


AE4.  Provide 
opportunities 
for every full‐ 
time student to 
have a work 
experience 
outside of the 
classroom. 


AE4.1  Launch the co‐curricular 
record and increase availability 
of volunteer opportunities. 
 


AE4.1  Co‐Curricular Project 
Coordinator hired.  Plan 
developed for implementation of 
Orbis software and promotion 
within College. 


The Co‐curricular 
coordinator was hired.   
Since the beginning of 
August 2012, policies and 
procedures, outlines of 
eligibility criteria, learning 
outcomes, and general 
information have been 
researched and drafted. 
 
Work has begun with Orbis 
Communications and 
Algonquin College’s IIRTS 
department to begin 
planning the online portal 
and related content. 
 
Launch is still anticipated by 
February 2013. 


  AE4.2   Embrace experiential 
learning as a cornerstone of the 
college programming strategy 
as evidenced by living 
laboratories, simulated work 
experiences and on site work 
experiences that connect 
research and practice. 


AE4.2  Plan developed to have all 
full‐time programs embed 
industry and/or community work 
experiences. 


Work experience definitions 
have been established and 
included in revised 
guidelines for program 
development. 
A work experience survey 
will be conducted in Nov ‘12 
to establish an inventory and 
baseline, and develop the 
gap analysis. 


Students and Clients 
SC1.  Deliver 
exceptional 
service to our 
diverse student 
and client 
populations. 


SC1.1 Implement new service 
delivery model in the Student 
Commons, including “triage” 
processes through Student 
Success Centre (new name 
TBD). 


SC1.1  Service delivery model, 
with supporting processes and 
software, in place for Fall, 2012, 
start‐up. 
 


Complete: The new 
supervisor of the Student 
Commons Welcome Desk 
was hired in late July.  Cross‐
training of all front line 
employees took place in 
August.  The Welcome 
Centre has been operational 
since the start of semester in 
September.  Client Service 
statistics are being gathered. 


  SC1.2 Provide additional 
online service applications and 
tools to increase overall 
efficiency and improve service 
to clients, and in support of 
the digital college. 


SC1.2  New functionality tested 
and in production,  including 
implementation of ACSIS redesign, 
automation of bursaries, and 
participation in MTCU‐funded 
Pathways Project. 


1. ACSIS Redesign 
Complete: In 2012, the 
Registrar’s Office placed 
into production a newly 
re‐designed Algonquin 
College Student 







4 | P a g e  
 


Information System 
(ACSIS). 


2. Automation of Bursaries 
  The Registrar’s Office 


created a temporary 
assignment to scope the 
requirements for the 
automation of bursaries 
on ACSIS. 


3. MTCU Pathways Project 
  MTCU Credit Transfer 


Project Student mobility 
and implementation of 
the credit transfer system 
is a key priority for the 
Ministry and Ontario 
Government.  In 
collaboration with the 
Academic area, the 
Registrar’s Office finalized 
and received approval for 
the Algonquin College 
institutional plan for 
2012‐2013.  Ministry 
funding has been 
received. 


  SC1.3 Implement interim 
service delivery model for 
Health Services, 
operationalizing the 
recommendations of the 
Operational Review conducted 
in January, 2012. 


SC1.3  Health Services Manager 
(contract) hired and timelines 
established and met re: actioning 
Phase 1 recommendations during 
2012/2013. 


The manager of Health 
Services was hired and began 
on September 17th.  The new 
manager is in the process of 
addressing 
recommendations in the 
Phase 1 report. 


  SC1.4 Define long‐term service 
delivery model for Health 
Services. 
 


SC1.4  Presentation delivered to 
PEC on recommended long‐term 
service delivery model. 


Complete: The long‐term 
service delivery model was 
presented and approved by 
PEC in June 2012.  The 
management  team is 
coordinating opportunities at 
a College‐wide level.  An RFQ 
for a health service provider 
is planned for winter 2013. 


  SC1.5 Increase the number of 
Prospective Student Leads 
collected. 
 


SC1.5  20% increase year‐over‐
year achieved. 


Recruitment Leads 
YTD  2012 ‐ 3880 Leads 
YTD  2011 ‐ 1494 Leads 
Increase ‐ 160% 
 
Marketing  Leads 
YTD  2012 ‐ 6015 Leads 
YTD  2011 ‐ 4281 Leads 
Increase 41%   
 
Total ‐ Combined Leads 
YTD  2012 ‐ 9895 Leads 
YTD  2011 ‐ 5775 Leads 
Increase 71% 







5 | P a g e  
 


  SC1.6 Increase Algonquin’s 
brand awareness as a leading 
provider of digitally connected 
applied education and 
training. 


SC1.6  Unaided Brand Awareness 
increased from 36% to 40% in 
annual brand survey. 
 


Plans in progress to procure 
external firm to execute 
brand survey. 


  SC1.7 Launch bi‐annual 
website & mobile customer 
satisfaction survey. 


SC1.7  Satisfaction benchmark 
established. 


Website satisfaction survey 
issued to stakeholders.  The 
initial results from over 150 
participants surveyed 
demonstrate an overall 
satisfaction rate of 77.5%.   


SC.2  Leverage 
technology to 
automate and 
modernize our 
business 
processes, 
fostering an 
environment of 
continuous 
improvement. 


SC2.1  Implement new online 
functionality to facilitate 
admission and graduation 
processes. 
 


SC2.1   New functionality tested 
and in production. 


New online functionality has 
been implemented and 
graduate validation 
programming is complete 
and in the final test phase. 


  SC2.2   Undertake the review 
and re‐engineering of HR 
business processes with the 
aim to identify, analyze and 
re‐design the way work is 
completed in our current HRIS 
to improve our customer 
service and increase the value 
add. 


SC2.2 Analysis of the processes 
completed and reported to PEC. 


Process continuing draft 
report is expected in late 
November. 


  SC2.3 Automate business 
processes to enhance 
productivity, efficiency and 
auditability. 


SC2.3.1 Ten College‐wide business 
processes automated, complete 
with workflow and interface to 
systems. 


Five process has been 
automated to date.  Twelve 
additional processes are in 
progress with additional 
processes to be identified in 
Q3. 


    SC2.3.2   Participation in MTCU 
projects, specifically, 
modernization of OSAP, Ontario 
Education Number project, Data 
Warehouse Full Enrolment 
project. 


1. OSAP Modernization 
Project  
Complete: Phase I has 
been finalized with the 
implementation of 
electronic confirmation 
for Algonquin College 
OSAP students effective 
Fall 2012. 


 
2. Ministry of Training, 


Colleges and Universities 
– Ontario Education 
Number (OEN) Extension 
Project 


  The Registrar, Algonquin 
College, is serving as a 
member of the Ontario 
Education Number (OEN) 
Extension Project which is 







6 | P a g e  
 


working to extend the 
OEN beyond primary and 
secondary school levels in 
Ontario. 


  The College completed an 
OEN Batch file extraction 
in XML format and 
submitted to the Registry.  
GeneSIS has been 
updated to include the 
OEN data field.  


 
3.  Data Warehouse Full 


Enrolment (DWFE)  
  The Registrar serves as a 


member of the Data 
Warehouse Full 
Enrolment (DWFE) 
provincial committee. 
Progress is proceeding 
well. 


 
Empowered People 
EP1.  Attract, 
develop and 
retain employees 
who have the 
knowledge and 
skills to be fully 
contributing 
members of the 
College. 


EP1.1 Administer a detailed 
Employee Engagement Survey. 
 
 


EP1.1  Survey completed and 
reviewed by PEC. 


Survey being conducted 
between October 15 to 
October 26, 2012. 


  EP1.2   Develop and 
implement a new faculty 
performance support plan. 


EP1.2  Faculty performance 
support plan established and  pilot 
launched. 


The Task Group (TG) working 
on this initiative has been 
expanded.  Four focus 
groups to be conducted in 
Nov ’12 will gather additional 
information that the TG will 
use to finalize its 
recommendations to 
President’s Council. 
 
On track to conduct a pilot in 
12‐13. 


EP2.  Create and 
foster an 
environment in 
which our 
leadership model 
of competencies 
and behaviours is 
supported. 


EP2.1    Implement the revised 
Administrative Performance 
Appraisal system utilizing 
Algonquin’s Leadership 
competencies and the 
creation of development and 
professional growth plans to 
support the College’s strategic 
direction. 


EP2.1  Administrative appraisals 
and documented professional 
growth and development plans 
for each Administrative position 
developed. 


Ongoing. 


  EP2.2. Establish a mentoring 
program and identify specific 
career development pathways 


EP2.2  Mentorship program 
piloted and tracking of career 
development opportunities for 


Mentorship pilot ongoing 
with 18 participants. 







7 | P a g e  
 


for those employees in the 
talent pool for the “High‐Risk” 
roles and critical positions. 


those employees in the talent 
pool implemented. 
 


  EP2.3  Establish a “Leadership 
Speaker Series” offered to 
those in the ALEI programs 
and other leaders within the 
College. 


EP2.3  Speaker series established 
and delivered. 


First speaker is Senator 
White on Friday, November 
23, 2012 from 2 to 4 p.m., in 
the Student’s Association 
Theatre (SAT).  The topic of 
his speech will be “Authentic 
leadership in the future”. 


Financial Sustainability 
FS1.  Align our 
funded 
operational 
expenditures 
with provincial 
funding. 


FS1.1 Research best practices, 
consult with internal 
stakeholders and draft a plan 
to implement a Responsibility 
Centered Management Model 
that encourages innovation 
and provides greater 
autonomy and decision 
making. 


FS1.1  Planning completed to 
implement an RCM budget model 
for the 14/15 budget. 
 


Preliminary research has 
started and planning is 
underway to meet with 2‐3 
universities to seek advice 
and information on their 
Responsibility Centered 
Management Models.  On 
track to complete the plan by 
March 2013. 
 


  FS1.2 Complete the 
implementation of self‐
sufficiency models for the 
Algonquin College Foundation 
and Applied Research and 
Innovation. 


FS1.2  Self‐sufficiency models 
implemented. 
 


First iteration of self‐
sufficiency model  has been 
developed. 


  FS1.3   Develop a 5 year 
strategic enrolment pro‐
forma. 


FS1.3  5 year strategic enrolment 
pro‐forma developed and 
approved. 


Strategic Enrolment 
Management Committee 
(SEMC) mandate has been 
approved by PC and SEMC 
has held their first meeting.   
Plans are in place to have an 
initial 5‐year strategic 
enrolment pro‐forma 
developed in Q4. 


  FS1.4 Coordinated curriculum 
and program development 
capacity in place to enable the 
College to move forward with 
high quality program 
initiatives in a timely manner. 


FS1.4  Coordinated curriculum and 
program development strategy 
developed and implementation of 
the plan executed. 


Strategy developed and 
proposed implementation 
underway.  A proposed 
organizational structure to 
centralize Teaching, Learning 
and Curriculum Services is 
under review to determine 
the baseline resource 
requirements to support the 
strategy, and assess the 
timeline of the associated 
implementation plan. 


  FS1.5 Achieve a  85% term‐to‐
term retention rate. 


FS1.5  85% term‐to‐term retention 
rate achieved. 


Results will be available after 
the November 1st 2012 Audit 
date, for 12W to 12F term‐
to‐term retention rate. 
 







8 | P a g e  
 


  FS1.6   Achieve a 65% student 
graduation rate. 


FS1.6  65% graduation rate 
achieved. 


Nothing to report at Q2 as 
this measure will be 
determined at year‐end. 


FS2. Expand non‐
funded 
opportunities to 
increase 
revenue. 


FS2.1  Increase revenue from 
international activities. 
 
 
 
 
 


FS2.1
• 1136 FTE international post‐


secondary students enrolled 
• 1200 international students 


enrolled in overseas campus 
offerings 


• International contract activity 
revenue increased to $677K. 


The 1,136 FTE target is at 
risk, as the current 
projection for 12‐13 will be 
closer to 960 FTEs. 
 
Overseas enrolment to date 
totals 991 students. 
International contract 
activity revenue to date (as 
of Q2) is $450K. 


  FS2.2  Increase revenue from 
personal development 
offerings, corporate training 
and contract activity 
 


FS2.2
• $4 M secured in corporate 


training revenue 
• $1.5M secured in revenue from 


government funded contract 
activity 


• $1M secured in Second Career 
Strategy revenue 


• $1.8 M in revenue secured 
from PDI offerings. 


ACCT has secured $1,280,495 
in corporate training revenue 
to date, with a revised yearly 
revenue estimate of 
$2.725M.  
 
Government contracts 
revenue year‐to‐date is 
$864,424.  
 
Second Career revenue 
estimated at $1,257,900. 
 
PDI revenue to date is 
$897,259, with a revised 
yearly revenue estimate of 
$1.1M. 
 


FS3. Leverage 
strategic 
business 
partnerships to 
meet the capital 
needs of the 
College. 


FS3.1  Host and facilitate an 
event which brings together 
potential partners in the 
private and public sector with 
the objective to initiate 
development of an effective 
shared services model. 


FS3.1  Event hosted resulting in 
opportunities identified and plans 
initiated to establish shared 
services resulting in operating 
efficiencies. 


Having engaged key industry 
leaders from January to 
September 2012 to gain 
broad support, as co‐host, 
the Ottawa Construction 
Association agreed to make 
the Chairman's Reception on 
November 6 the event for 
owners, builders, engineers, 
architects and project 
managers to discuss "Current 
Construction Delivery 
Models ‐ What is working ‐ 
what is not?" to identify 
better practices. This will set 
the stage for a focused 
discussion on P3 shared 
services.  In addition, plans 
are in progress to meet with 
four Eastern Ontario colleges 
to explore feasibility of 
sharing IT services. 
 


  FS3.2  Investigate  FS3.2  Market scan and feasibility  Current initiatives include 







9 | P a g e  
 


opportunities to develop 
strategic partnerships and 
identify alternative sources of 
capital. 


analysis completed identifying the 
most beneficial strategic 
partnership opportunities. 


determining feasibility of a 
2nd Energy Services Company 
(ESCO) Contract, discussions 
with Infrastructure Ontario 
and an engineering and 
construction company on 
alternative financing and 
procurement opportunities. 
 


  FS3.3 Build new strategic 
business partnerships and 
steward existing relationships 
to generate revenue and in‐
kind contributions. 


FS3.3  Additional $670K raised for 
the Perth capital campaign and 
$900K raised for the Pembroke 
capital campaign to achieve 
targets. 
$1M in gift‐in‐kind donations 
raised. 


Perth Campaign has raised 
$100K from an individual 
donor – this will be the 
College’s largest Alumni gift. 
Pembroke Campaign has 
raised $135,508. 
Gift‐in‐kind donations = 
$9,570 received. $100,000+ 
donation is in final stages of 
being received. Four new 
partnerships are processing 
through stages of 
assessment to receivables. 


FS4. Create the 
technological 
foundation to 
align with the 
digital direction. 


FS4.1  Establish an Integrated 
College Development Plan 
established through a process 
that considers physical and 
technological infrastructure 
needs together. 


FS4.1  Integrated College 
Development Plan completed, 
providing a roadmap of capital 
needs to pursue the Digital 
College objectives. 


On October 3, 2012, 
President’s Council reviewed 
and endorsed the ICDP work 
accomplished to date: 
‐ ICDP framework and 
leading theories for learning, 
working, social space 
development 
‐ "Algonquin 2040" to 
establish long‐term 
principles for "clicks and 
bricks" development 
‐ "Woodroffe Campus 2017" 
as an enabling strategy 
related to the College 
strategy 
‐ College Space and 
Infrastructure Committee 
annual plans. 


  FS4.2  Develop a multi‐year 
implementation plan for 
Enterprise Resource Planning 
system(s), (HRIS, Finance, CRM  
and Student Information) 


FS4.2  Multi‐year plan to 
implement ERP system(s) 
completed and approved by PEC. 
 


Preliminary directional 
approval has been received 
from President’s Council.   
Development of multi‐year 
plan is in progress. 


  FS4.3   Deliver business 
intelligence and analysis 
solutions to College 
stakeholders. 


FS4.3  Analysis services 
implemented for BI end users. 
 
Business user BI/Analysis 
environment implemented. 
 
BI analysis models implemented 
to assist the College with labour 
analysis, risk assessment and 
Strategic Enrollment 


Cognos BI solution 
implementation has been 
delayed to November due to 
other demands.  Analysis 
environment for business 
users and analysis models 
will follow Cognos 
implementation. 







 


Management.
  FS4.4  Improve the College’s 


connection to the internet 
including enhanced security, 
appropriate volume 
prioritization technology, 
and capacity management 
strategy. 


FS4.4  Network configuration and 
improvements completed.  
Through remainder of academic 
year, core network operating at 
99.9% availability. 


99.03% against an SLA of 
99.9%.  A total of 21.5 hrs of 
connectivity time was lost at 
the end of September.   


10 | P a g e  
 





